AGENDA
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING

CHESTERFIELD Conference Room 101
Thursday, August 7, 2025

6:00 PM
I. INTRODUCTION OF THE BOARD AND CITY STAFF
Il. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY
A. Approval of March 6, 2025 Meeting Summary
lll. REQUEST FOR AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

IV. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

A. B.A. 03-2025 Judson Manor, Lot 27: A request for a variance of the
structure setbacks of the “R-3” Residential District for a .3-acre tract of
land located south of Beagle Lane and east of Judson Manor Drive.

V. ADJOURNMENT

PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN THE BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND AT (636) 537-6716 AT LEAST
TWO (2) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.
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EXH BI TS
EXH BI T DESCRI PTI ON PAGE
Var ked/ Adm t t ed
Sunny's Spa:
Hearing Exhibit 1 Sunny's Spa Rul es and 66/ 83
Regul ati ons
GCty:
Exhibit A Phot os Skip the Ganes 134/ 145
Exhi bit B Phot os Cal |l escort.com 134/ 145
Exhi bit C Phot os Cal |l escort.com 134/ 145
Exhi bit D Phot os Skip the Ganes 134/ 145
Exhi bit E Phot os Adul t Look 134/ 145
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APPEARANCES
Boar d:
Ms. Kat herine Hipp, Chair
M. Brendan Bl ock
Ms. Jeanni e Rader
Dr. Barb Wit man
Cty:
Al yssa Ahner, Seni or Pl anner
Erica Bl esener, Ofice Manager
Saundra Baker, Executive Assi stant
Chris Gaville, Attorney for the Cty
Ben Kl oos, Attorney for the Gty
Sunny's Spa:
Jacob dickfield
Frankel, Rubin, Klein, Payne & Pudl owski, P.C.
231 S Bem ston Ave #1111
C ayton, MO 63105
Email: jglickfield@rankel rubin.com
Phone: 314. 725. 8000
May Huang, | nterpreter
REPORTED BY:
Colin Walli s
Lexitas Legal
711 North El eventh Street
St. Louis, Mssouri, 63101
(314) 644-2191
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(Starting tinme of the hearing: 6:18 p.m)

CHAIR HI PP: (Good evening. Thank you very
much for your patience in waiting for the
board. | hearby call the Board of Adjustnent
of the City of Chesterfield neeting for March
6th, 2025, to order at 6:20 this evening. |I'm
Kat heri ne Hi pp, pardon ne, Chair of the Board
of Adjustnment. Allow ne to introduce the other
menbers of the Board in attendance to this
meeting. To ny right, go ahead.

MR. BLOCK: Brendan Bl ock.

M5. RADER: Jeanni e Rai der.

DR. VWH TMAN: Bar bara Wit man.

CHAIR HI PP: Thank you. Also in
attendance are -- representative city attorney,
Chris Gaville; prosecuting attorney Ben Kl oos;
seni or planner, Alyssa Ahner; office nmanager
Erica Blesener, did | say right? Bl esener.
Executive assistant, Saundra Baker;
interpreter, Mary (sic) Huang and our court
reporter fromlLexitas --

MR, GRAVILLE: Lexitas Legal.

CHAIR HI PP: Lexitas Legal, thank you.

The first order of business is approval of the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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August 3rd, 2023, mnutes. The chair wll
entertain a notion?

DR VWH TMAN: Move approval.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. M. Wiitnman has
noved -- has nmade a notion for approval. Can |
get a second?

M5. RADER: | second.

CHAIR H PP: Al nenbers who have revi ewed
the mnutes, can we -- is there any discussion?
No di scussion? Ms. Blesener, will you call the
vote, please?

(Court reporter clarification.)

M5. BLESENER: Kat herine Hi pp?

CHAIR HPP. | -- 1 vote to approve the
m nut es.

M5. BLESENER: Brendan Bl ock?

MR. BLOCK: | vote to approve.

M5. BLESENER  Jeanni e Rader?

MS5. RADER. | vote to approve.

MS. BLESENER: Barb Whitman?

DR VH TMAN:  Approve.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay, the mnutes are
approved as stated. The Board wll hear three
petitions this evening. BA-02-2024 WId Horse
Bluffs, Lot 4. A request for a variance from

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS

www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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the 200 foot western boundary setback of site
speci fic zoning ordi nance, 2394, to build an
out door kitchen, in brackets, 1AV6300838.
Second petition tonight woul d be BA-02-01-2025,
Terraces at Wods MII, Lot 19. A request for
a variance from Section 4B3 of ordi nance 822 in
order to construct a sun room And, lastly,
BA012024, Sunny's Spa, at 13714 dive
Boul evard, Suite AL An appeal of the Gty
Adm nistrator's findings of fact, concl usions
of law and order upholding the Cty's decision
to deny an application to renew a busi ness
license for Sunny's Spa. The Chair notes that
the affidavit of publication and exhibits for
the petition has been placed on the diagnosis.
Ceneral instructions here, as your nane is
call ed you and your representative wll be
asked to conme forward, state your nane, explain
the variance requested and the hardship for
practical difficulties which necessitates this
request. Petitioners are rem nded that the
Board sits in a quasi-judicial manner, by that
| mean we are acting on what is presented to us
here tonight. It is the petitioner's

responsibility to show the particul ar hardshi ps

Page 7
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or practical difficulties that they feel wll

entitle themto a variance. Please be advised
that finances are not considered a hardship.

After the petitioners have presented their
request, there will be an opportunity for
anyone in favor or opposition to speak relative
to the variance request. The Board wl |l
general |y nake a decision on the request this
evening. | wll note that it takes four votes
in favor to approve a variance, and, therefore,
we needed all four of our nenbers here tonight,
so | thank you, again, for your patience in
that matter. |If the decision of the Board is
unfavorabl e you have the right to appeal to the
St. Louis County GCrcuit Court. This action
must be taken within 30 days fromthe Board's
decision. The first itemon the agency is
BA022024, WId Horse Bluffs, Lot 4. WII staff
pl ease stand and present their exhibits and any
comment s regardi ng BA022024.

M5. AHNER: All right, good evening. M
nane i s Alyssa Ahner. |'ma senior planner of
the Gty of Chesterfield. As nentioned, this
I s BA022024, WIld Horse Bluffs, Lot 4, and this

Is a request for the variance for the 200 foot

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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(Court reporter clarification.)
(Alyssa Ahner sworn.)

M5. AHNER: Continuing on, this is a
request for a variance fromthe 200-f oot
west ern boundary setback of site specific
zoni ng ordi nance 2394 in order to construct an
outdoor kitchen. Up on the screen, | have the
general location of the subject site, indicated
by a star. And to get a little bit closer
perspective, | have the subject site here
zooned in alittle bit. They're |ocated on
W1l d Horse Creek Road.

A brief proposal summary, the applicant is
requesting a variance fromthe 200-foot western
boundary structure setback, established via
site specific ordinance 2394, which enconpasses
the entirety of the WIld Horse Bl uff
subdivision. In lieu of the 200 foot western
boundary setback, the applicant is requesting
this be reduced to 170 in order to construct an
out door ki tchen.

Alittle bit of background on the site.
WIld Horse Bluffs is zoned E-1 acre state

district wth a WId Horse overlay, which is

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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established in 2006 via site specific ordinance
2394. Staff researched the 200-foot setback to
better understand why the di stance was
originally chosen and any inplications there
may be fromthe potential reduction.

Per code, the setbacks for a WIld Horse
Creek overlay shall be established in the
underlying zoning district. In this specific
case, the underlying zoning district of WIld
Horse Bluffs is E-1 acre estate district. Per
code, the setback for the E-1 Estate District
was 25 feet fromthe side yard and right of way
and 40 feet between structures. Upon review ng
code nodi fications between 2006 and 2025 and
t he docunents fromthe review process per
ordi nance 2394, it remains unclear as to why
the structure setbacks for Wld Horse Bluffs
Subdi vision differ fromthe underlying zoning
di strict.

The subject site has had interest froma
few parties over the years, but has sat
undevel oped until a record plat for four lots
was approved in 2022. Municipal zoning
approval s have been pulled for all four lots

and the construction of single-famly

Page 10
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residential honmes are underway. The owner of
Lot 4 is requesting a variance to reduce the
200-f oot setback to 170 in order to construct
an outdoor kitchen. The imge | have that up
on -- there on the screen is just a rough
conparison of 200-foot distance to the 170-f oot
di st ance.

The applicant did provide a statenent of
har dshi p, practical difficulty or other
i nformati on warrantying action by the Board for
consideration. The entirety of the statenent
has been provided and highlights the topography
and | ayout of the | ot presents significant
obstacles that make it extrenely difficult to
conply existing zoning regul ati ons.
In response to the topography chall enges, it
shoul d be noted that all four lots sit on a
bluff, i.e. the nane of the subdivision WIld
Horse Bluffs. The newly constructed hones sit
In at an el evation of 540, which then drops
down to an elevation of 492 at the northern
property |line, before dropping to an el evation
of about 460 at the railroad just below. And I
do have an imge up there on the screen just

showi ng different contours in that area.

Page 11
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Chapter 89 of the M ssouri Readvi sed

Statutes states in passing upon appeal s where
there are practical difficulties or unnecessary
hardships in the way of carrying out the strict
| etter of such ordinance to vary or nodify the
application of any of the regulations or
provi sions of such ordinance relating to the
construction or alteration of buildings or
structures or the use of the land so that the
spirit of ordinance shall be observed, public
safety and wel fare secured and substanti al
justice done.

In review ng the statenent of practi cal
difficulty, several factors are to be
consi dered by the Board. One, how substanti al
the variance is in relation to the requirenent.
Two, the effect if the variance is allowed on
avai | abl e governnental facilities. Three,
whet her substantial change will be produced in
the character of nei ghborhood or substanti al
detrinment to enjoying properties or neighbors.
Four, whether the difficulty can be obvi ated by
a feasible nethod other than a variance; and,
five, whether the interest of justice wll be

served by allowi ng the vari ance.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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A decision of the Board granting a
variance that permts the erection of a
structure shall be valid for a period of six
nont hs, unl ess building permt for such
erection was obtained within this period, and
the erection is started and proceeds to
conpletion in accordance with the terns of this
deci si on.

That concl udes ny presentation, but | can
answer any questions you may have and we do
have a petitioner here as well.

CHAIR HI PP: Questions at this point? W
have no questions at this tinme. W would |ike
to hear -- please be available. W'II|l hear
fromthe respondent or the applicant, and we'l]|
get back to you after we hear fromthem

M5. AHNER:  Ckay.

CHAIR HHPP:. Ma'am if you will please be
sworn in and state your nane for the record.

(Stacy Adans sworn)

M5. SUTTON: Thank you guys for taking ny
petition tonight. M nane is Stacy Adans. |
amthe owner of Lot 4 of the property that we
have historically called planes, trains and

aut onobi l es. As you guys know, the property

Page 13
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there has sat vacant for nany years. W took
it upon ourselves to take on a very chall engi ng
project to develop those four lots, bringing in
significant revenue for the area. Part of that
Is the hones -- Lot 4 was the nost chall enging
house that's out there. W literally built it
on acliff. To adhere to the zoni ng ordi nances
that were previously there, we took up a
significant amount of our land to -- the
backyard, to put retaining walls to stay within
the zoni ng setback | anes.

So, we have spent a significant anmount of
time trying to figure out how we can possibly
make this a viable product or a viable parcel
of land. So, we have a pool that we are in the
process of installing that has MCA and zoning
permts and everything, and as part of that,
we're trying to put in a kitchen. M/ husband
i kes to barbecue. M kids like to go out and
swm and we want to be able to enjoy the
backyard to the best of our ability. The
chal | enge, though, is we have the topography
that we are up agai nst.

In addition to the chall enges of

t he topography, the Metropolitian Sewer design,

Page 14
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our sewer district, asked us to put in sone

bi oretention basins. The only way that we
woul d have been able to put in those

bi oretention basins is we brought them up
closer to the property to make sure that we
adhere to the overall area. Part of that, we
went on a journey. Spoke to St. Louis
Metropolitan Airport. They are in support of
this. W own the parcel, the acre right on the
next side of it. So, we, obviously, are in
support of it.

In addition to that, the HOA has approved
and is in support of it. W spoke with
M. CGoldstein that owns the parcel of |and on
the side further to nmake sure that he was al so
supportive, which Alyssa has all of those on
file.

In addition to those, we are the buil der
for the other three | ots and have support from
all those owners as well. So, |'masking for
your help in support of our pool house or our
pool outdoor kitchen really, and to nake sure
that we'll able to enjoy the parcel of |and
t hat ot herwi se sat vacant for nany years as you

know. Do you have any questions for ne?

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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CHAIR H PP: Yes, we do.

M5. ADAMS: Sure.

CHAIR H PP: | have a question.

M5. ADAMS: Sure.

CHAIR H PP: | have been reading this, and
| did read fromwhat | found on the website.

M5. ADAMS: Sure.

CHAIR HPP: | was a little confused, is
there a concrete platformpoured at this tine?

M5. ADAMS: At this tine, there's not a
concrete platformthat's poured. It wll be
poured as part of the pool deck. So, if you
| ook actually at the MCA approval for the pool,
that actually had approval for concrete. |It's
part of the zoning ordinance. You can put in
what we spoke with Shelby on, is that you can
actually have concrete, but you can't necessary
put anything above it. And so --

CHAIR HI PP:  Ckay.

MS. ADAMS:  Yes.

CHAIR HI PP: That nakes it nore clear,
because | was a little confused because it
sounded |i ke there was already -- at the | east
the concrete --

M5. ADAMS: Next week.

B com 1% PErLes I a5 ststes s Krced et e Neveda Regisuaion sor. - pJEXITAS
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CHAIR HHPP: -- was able to be put in, and
there was a kitchen which would be able to put
in, and what you are looking for is a variance
for the cover --

M5. ADAMS: That's right.

CHAIR H PP: -- that goes over the top --

M5. ADAMS: That's correct.

CHAIR HPP: -- a concrete platforn? |Is
that correct?

M5. ADAMS:  Yeah.

CHAIR H PP: Wen you say the Spirit of
St. Louis has supported you, they're just not
opposed to you; is that correct?

M5. ADAMS: They actually -- and, Alyssa,
| believe you have that also in the file? They
actually wote in support of -- so, it's not
that they're not in opposition, that they
under stand what we're doing; they're conpletely
I n support of it; and they had no concerns.

CHAIR HI PP:. Ckay. So, you could put the
platformin and you could put the kitchen in,
but you can't put the cover over the top of it;
Is that correct?

M5. ADAMS: So, it's right where we --

CHAIR H PP: So the cover --

o com 1% PErLes I a5 ststes s Kced et e Neveda Regisuaon sor. - pJEXITAS
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M5. ADAMS: -- put the barbecue, yeah.
CHAIR H PP: Ckay. Now, | was trying to

i mage in ny thoughts that you wanted to build,

you know, construct your foot covering on this

concrete platformat the 170 point mark; is
that correct? Do | have that --

M5. ADAMS: Correct. So, the way that the
parcel is set up, and I'mstill unsure of why
we have -- on one part side of the parcel, it's
65 foot in variance between our house -- well,
bet ween t hat house and our next door nei ghbor.

CHAIR HHPP: Can | interrupt you?

M5. ADAMS: Un- huh

CHAIR H PP: Could you put a map up here
on this, so she mght be able to reference, so
we can kind of get a visual of what you're
descri bi ng?

M5. ADAMS: You can cone over, actually.

CHAIR HIPP: | know where the land is
| ocated, but the details are --

M5. ADAMS: Thank you.

CHAIR HPP: It may be useful for others.

M5. AHNER. So, | don't have -- this inmage
that | think shows the nost up-to-date

construction, or | also had this inmge, but

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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it's alittle bit nore dated, so it doesn't

necessary show the hone construction yet.

CHAIR H PP: But we're just talking about
Lot 4 at this tine --

M5. ADAMS: Yeah, that's correct. Al I'm
asking is for Lot 4. So, right there, you wll
see there is -- which is kind of hard to see
actually on there, is a slope drops directly
down, and then we have a flat parcel where --
al nost where right there you see that arrow,
the arrow cl osest to nyself or to you guys, and
there's going to be concrete right there. Part
of that concrete is where we're asking to be
able to put, and then where I'mreferring from
to where you're seeing that arrow all the way
over, past that line, the secondarily line, we
actually own all that as well. And then the
honmeowners that own on the other side of it,
actually submtted in their support not only
saying that they supported it but they actually
t hought it was going to | ook really nice.

CHAIR HHPP: COkay. Now, just a little
background, if you woul d.

M5. ADAMS: Sure.

CHAIR H PP: There was a study done

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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from-- what was it, 2006 (sic), 2022 or '24,

what was the outcone of that study regarding

the why in the world it was 200 feet? |If you

can speak to that?

M5. ADAMS: There was not -- so --

CHAIR HI PP: Historically.

M5. ADAMS: There -- there wasn't any
under standi ng. But what | do know about this
parcel of land is that at one point, this was
supposed to have a self-cover on it. So,
there's Zoning NU on one side, and Zoning NU on
the other side; and then if you |ook at it,
fromthat standpoint, | believe the zoning
set backs, and | only know this from ny past
life, was 200 feet setbacks fromthe |ine when
it cones to cell towers. So, | suspect, but
not fact, is it was probably related to the
cell tower that was originally being -- asked
to be put out there.

CHAIR HI PP: Do you have any questions? |
would i ke to note for the record that the City
Council Liaison, Dan Hurt, is in the gallery
W th us.

MR, HURT: Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR H PP: Thank you, sir. Any

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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guestions based on this -- so, | guess, you
know, one of the obstacles, we appreciate you
are building here in Chesterfield, and we
certainly applaud that and appreciate that.
Where is the hardship of having a concrete
platformthis size that will help us help you?
| mean, denonstrate to us the hardship. Were
is it at?

M5. ADAMS: So, the hardship -- in regards
to what's the hardship that we --

CHAIR H PP: | nean, you want to use the
property to its greatest extent.

M5. ADAMS: That's correct.

CHAIR HI PP: And be as narketabl e as
possi ble. W understand that. And, | nean,
that's what the spirit of this Board of
Adjustnent is here to ook at all the facts --

M5. ADAMS: Absol utely.

CHAIR HIPP: -- and determne what's in
the best of the -- in spite of the code that
sets forth the details. But one of the things
that we have to determne is if there's a
hardshi p here --

M5. ADAMS:  Yep.

CHAIR H PP: -- and through no fault of

Page 21
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your own, and if you can just kind of drill

into that particular --

M5. ADAMS: Absolutely. Thank you for the
gquestion. So, the biggest struggle that we had
I's the topography that we're facing there. So,
you' Il see that back road there, is retaining
wal ls. Typically, in this situation, had we
not had those retaining walls in place, we
woul d have been able to build -- sorry. Build
an area that we coul d have done what we want ed
to on our property, but because of
the topography, it conpletely limted that and
then we had to put bioretention basins. So,
where you see at the corner of both of them
there is a pretty substantial bioretention
basi s required on both sides.

MR, GRAVILLE: Can | ask --

CHAIR HI PP:  Yes.

MR, GRAVILLE: -- a question?

CHAI R HI PP:  Yes.

MR, GRAVILLE: So, where is the pool going
on --

M5. ADAMS: The -- the pool is going right
behi nd the house, so where you see the pool up,

nore where you see the main portion of the
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house, so this part here is actually -- so |I'm
sure you guys are probably famliar with the
area just based of the |ocation, half of the
house is actually garage. The other half of it
Is actually our house, and the portion in the
top right-hand corner, is alnost the entire
thing, is the bioretention basin that was
required by MSD. The sane thing is true over
here where the zoning --

MR GRAVILLE: So --

M5. ADAMS: (Go ahead.

MR GRAVILLE: Let ne stop you.

M5. ADAMS: Sure.

MR. GRAVILLE: So, the pool is in the
backyar d?

M5. ADAMS: That's correct.

MR, GRAVILLE: But this structure is kind
of inthe side yard or in the side yard --

M5. ADAMS: It's --

MR. GRAVILLE: -- because it's in the
set back?

M5. ADAMS: It's really -- it's -- yes.

MR, GRAVILLE: So, the way | understand it
I's your dropoff topography is so significant
that you had to put those retaining walls in to
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have any usabl e backyard?

M5. ADAMS: That's correct.

MR GRAVILLE: Ckay. And is it to the
side yard a little bit flatter?

M5. ADAMS: The side yard is -- so, yes,
it is flatter, and because of the retaining
walls, the way we put themin, they were
actually a requirenent of the Gty for us to be
able to build a house in the first place. So,
It took up a significant anount of our personal
| and al r eady.

MR, GRAVILLE: Right, but if you didn't
have the retaining walls, it wouldn't be flat
enough to put in a pool, right?

M5. ADAMS: That's -- that's correct. But
we couldn't nove them back further. W weren't
all oned to nove them further back.

MR, GRAVILLE: Ckay, understood. But
har dshi p-w se, there is significant
t opogr aphy - -

M5. ADAMS: That's correct.

MR, GRAVILLE: -- issues. That does it
limt the |location of where you can put things
on the property because of the topography?

M5. ADAMS: That is correct as well.
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MR, GRAVILLE: Ckay, not what the Gty
required to do --

MB. ADAMS: Right.

M5. BLESENER: -- just the natural stuff

M5. ADAMS: That's correct.

MR GRAVILLE: Ckay, | just wanted to
clarify.

M5. ADAMS: Thank you. Thanks for hel ping
nme get there.

CHAIR H PP: So, |I'minmaging the pool kind
of where it says 200 di stance, and the arrow
shoots off to the right and then kind --

M5. ADAMS: That's correct.

CHAIR HHPP: -- in that spot, in the
shadowy spot is where the pool goes?

M5. ADAMS: That's correct. And part of
that is also where we're putting that concrete
in that |ocation.

MR. GRAVILLE: And the pool is -- is the
pool behind the building |Iine behind the back
of the house.

M5. ADAMS: It is within the setback
l'ines.

MR, GRAVILLE: What | nean by is, the pool
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iIs not on the side of the property. |It's
behind the property --

M5. ADAMS: That's correct, yep.

CHAIR HIPP: Not the issue of the setback?

M5. ADAMS: The outdoor kitchen will be a
portion of behind the house, and then a portion
that will be slightly visible; but, again, you
won't - -

MR, GRAVILLE: So, the outdoor kitchen, is
t hat behi nd the house as well, just alittle --

M5. ADAMS: A corner, that's correct.

MR, GRAVILLE: Because you don't have that
roomin the back?

M5. ADAMS: That's correct. And it's also
worth noting the drop fromthe top of the house
all the way down is also pretty significant as
well, so you wll not see -- not only are the
berns that you see a portion of it currently
right now, but the berns will cover and there
will be no visible -- | nean, very mniml, if
any, visibility to even the top of it.

MR BLOCK: [I'mjust alittle confused why
It I's necessary to have an actual roof over,
you know, the concrete slab? Because, | nean,

tonme it seens |ike, you know, nore of a |uxury
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or a preference versus, you know, |ike a
really -- like a hardship; because, | nean, in
the summertine, we barely get any rain; and
when it rains outside and |I'm barbecuing, |
just have to deal with it, you know.

M5. ADAMS: So, that's fair during the
sumertinme. However, we have a son that has
speci al nedical needs that requires certain
addi tional diets and ways of cooking, and part
of those cooking requirenents require ny
husband to go out 24/7 -- well, not 24/7, year
round to be able to serve and cook certain
aspects of it. So, when we |ook at it, how
woul d we actually enjoy a parcel of land? |
think that really ties into it as well.

MR BLOCK: kay.

CHAIR HPP: Wuld the Gty like
to respond to any of the issues brought forth
by the petitioner?

M5. AHNER: Unl ess you would Iike
sonething clarified --

CHAIR HI PP: No? Wuld anyone |ike --
woul d any of the nenbers present here have any
positions for or against this particular
request for a variance? Are you the only one
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here, ma'am representing yourself? | just

want to make sure --

M5. ADAMS: You're stuck with ne, sorry.

CHAIR H PP: -- everyone in the audi ence
to make sure we're all --

MR, GRAVILLE: Yeah, the only thing I want
to clarify for Board of Adjustnent, it's
unfortunate about your son's condition, but the
personal -- it's sonething unique to the |ot,
right? That is the hardship. This is a pretty
unique lot. The roof structure, probably nost
backyards can be built. [It's alnost |ike your
| ot was turned sideways because of the dropoff.

M5. ADAMS: That's correct.

MR GRAVILLE: | think that's what you're
considering, but I want to nmake sure since
we're on the record here, that the person --
personal aspect of it does not create the
har dshi p.

M5. ADAMS: Thank you.

CHAIR HHPP: W certainly want the | and
used to its greater capacity, and we appreciate
your investnent that you' ve nade in the
property and continue to nake in the property.

| have one question regarding the other |ots.
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M5. ADAMS: Sure.

CHAIR HPP: Are they going to need this
simlar --

M5. ADAMS: No. W took the hardest one.
They actually -- they will be comng forward in
the future nonths on just overall MCA;, but the
way we have it all designed, they should not
need this.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. GCkay, city, any
ot her response fromyou? GCkay. Deliberation
of the Board. M. Hurt, you're new and this is
in your ward, is that correct?

MR HURT: WId Horse Bluffs is in Ward 4.
l"'min Ward 3.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay, do you have --

MR, HURT: M. Brendan Block is there.

CHAIR HI PP: Ckay. But just sitting over
here as the city liaison, do you have any
conments or any concerns?

MR, HURT: Well, | think you guys are
evaluating it appropriately. | think the
guestions and the comments are all appropriate,
so | think you' ve taken -- trying to figure out
the best way to do this. Just as a point of

reflection, historically, when the city first
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started, it was an appoi nted counsel, and they

had an appoi nted board for the Board of
Adjustnent. Turned out that was the first
thing | served on before | was el ected, so |
know what you're dealing with it, and | w sh
you the best of luck in making a decision
because it's like a court here.

CHAIR H PP: Yes, it's difficult. You
presented a very good case. | am personally
stuck on the hardship matter a bit, but | think
| understand this | and needs to be used,
and the topography is a difficult situation for
you to fully utilize this. 200 feet is a |long
di stance for a setback.

MR, HURT: Madam Chair?

CHAIR HI PP: Yes, sir.

MR. HURT: The representative fromthis
ward is in the audi ence, though.

CHAIR HPP: Is that right?

MR, HURT: Ward 4. Merrell Hansen is in
t he back.

CHAIR H PP: Merrell Hansen --

MR. HURT: And M. Budoor, too.

CHAIR H PP:  Ckay.

MR, HURT: If you want to ask if they have
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any comments on --

CHAIR HHPP: | would like you both to step
forward to the dais, please, and thank you so
much.

M5. ADAMS: Thank you.

CHAIR H PP: WAit here. You nmay have
comments based on their comments.

MR, GRAVILLE: |If you comment, though, you
will have to be sworn in.

CHAIR H PP: Yes, please. If you would
i ke to comment.

MR, GRAVILLE: If you want to comment, you
need to be sworn in.

CHAIR H PP: W |ike your presence not ed.
That's al ways positive. Conme on in. Cone on
up, yes, ma'am come up on.

M5. HANSEN: So, I'm Merrill Hansen and
this is Gary Budoor. W may not have all of
the information being --

CHAIR HI PP: COkay. Stop right there.

Just cone and introduce yourself. Let's begin
in and say what you have to say.
(Merrill Hansen and Gary Budoor sworn.)

M5. HANSEN. So, | would say, | don't
doubt that there are facts about this case that
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"' m not aware.

Hurt is saying,

all of the know

her request.
CHAI R HI PP:

right, sir. If

podium Yes, si

record.
MR, BUDOOR:
of Ward 4.
CHAI R HI PP:
VMR, BUDOOR:

this.

CHAI R HI PP:
sir. Any questi
representatives

you very nuch.

it here this evening.

Hansen's comments,

Having |istened to our

speak, like |I think M. -- or Council

resi dent

Menber

|'"'m-- what she's sayi ng nakes

sense. | consider -- and | think you had, and
M. Block has sone really good questions about

this. | would have no problemwth this from

edge | have so far and support

Ckay, thank you, ma'am All

you'll step forward to the

r, our elected officials nmade

Gary Budoor, council

Ckay.

Let's get you on the

menber

| definitely echo Merrill

and we appreciate all your

wor k, and thanks for com ng and speaki ng about

Ckay. Thank you very nuch,

ons based on our

here? GCkay, thank you.

Thank

Al right, having further -- no

further consideration, no questions.

request
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that we take the vote. Please call the roll.
M5. BLESENER: Kat herine Hi pp?
CHAIR HHPP: | vote yes to allow the

variance to be permtted.

&

BLESENER:  Brendan Bl ock?
BLOCK: | vote yes.
BLESENER: Jeanni e Rader?
RADER:  Yes.

KLI TZI NG Barb Whitnman?

T30 9 3

VWH TMAN:  Yes.

CHAIR H PP: Thank you, the request for
the variance is approved. Thank you very nuch.
Thank you for the council nenbers comng this
evening, and we wll nove on to our second --
our second issue on the agenda today, which is
BA012025, Terraces at Wods MIIl, Lot 19, a
request for a variance fromsection 4(E)(3) of
ordi nance 822 in order to construct a sunroom

(Court reporter clarification.)

M5. AHNER® M nane is Alyssa Ahner. |'m
a senior planner with the Gty of Chesterfield.
Next on the agenda, we have BA012025 Terraces
at Wood MIIl, Lot 19, and it's a request for
vari ance from Section 4(E)(3) of ordinance 822

in order to construct a sunroom Up on the
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screen, | have a general |ocation of the site
i ndicated by a red star. And, then, again, to
zoomin a little bit nore and give you nore
perspective, | have the subject site there in
red. This is just off of Wods MII Cove
Drive. Jack and Panel a Heaton, the applicants
and owners of 312 Wwods MII Terrace Lane are
requesting a variance from Section 4(B)(3) of
ordi nance 822 in order to construct a sunroom
at their attached townhone residence.

Ordi nance 822 covering ordi nances for terraces
at Wbods M 1| Subdivision state that there's a
20-f oot setback fromthe north and west
property |ines of planned environnent unit; but
that Pl anni ng Comm ssion may al |l ow outside
decks wthin these setbacks as approved on the
site devel opnent plan.

The existing residence which was
constructed in 1993, has a deck that currently
encroached into the 20-foot setback. In
January of 2025, property owners submtted a
site devel opnent plan in order to replace a
portion of the existing deck with the sunroom
However, per ordi nance 822, the only structure

that is permtted within the setback with
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Pl anni ng Conm ssi on approval is an outside

deck.

Staff inforned the property owners that a
vari ance woul d need to be sought and approved
in order to permt the sunroom Figure two
depicts the portion of the survey with the
exi sting deck outlined in red. Figure three
depicts the site devel opnent plan with the
proposed sunroomin question. The existing
deck is 12 feet, 7 inches fromthe property
line, and the proposed sunroomis 10 feet,

7 inches fromthe property I|ine.

The applicant is ultimately seeking a
variance to allow a sunroomw thin the setback
rat her than an outside deck. Should the Board
of Adjustnent approve the request, the
applicant then would proceed to the second
portion of the process, which would be taking
the site devel opnent plan before the Pl anning
Commi ssion for a final approval of additional
encroachnment into the setback.

Chapter 89 of the M ssouri Readvi sed
Statutes states in passing upon appeal s where
there are practical difficulties or unnecessary

hardship in the way of carrying out the strict
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letter of such ordinance, to verify or nodify

the application of any of the regulations or
provi sions of such ordinance relating to the
construction, alteration of buildings or
structures for the use of land, so that this
spirit of ordinance shall be observed, public
safety and wel fare secured and substanti al
justice done. In review ng the statenent of
practical difficulty, several factors are to be
consi dered by the Board.

One, how substantial the variance is in
relation to the requirenent. Two, if the
variance is allowed -- I'"'msorry, the effect if
the variance is allowed on the avail abl e
governnental facilities. Three, whether a
substanti al change will be produced in the
character of the nei ghborhood or substanti al
detrinment to enjoying properties or neighbors.
Four, whether the difficulty can be obvi ated by
sone feasible nethod other than the variance.

Five, whether the interest of justice wll
be served by allow ng the variance. The
deci sion by the Board granting the variance
that permts the erection of a structure shall

be valid for a period of sixth nonths, unless
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the building permt for such erection is

obtained within this period and the erection is
started and proceeds to conpletion in
accordance wth the terns of the decision.

That concl udes ny presentation. | can, of
course, answer any question, and | do again
have petitioner here that is here to speak as
wel | .

CHAIR HI PP: Ckay, any questions based on
the presentation? W'Ill |ike to hear fromthe
petitioner please, and have questions for you
per haps afterwards. Thank you. Wuld the
petitioner please cone forth? And, sir, if you
coul d pl ease raise your hand and be sworn.

(Jack Heat on sworn.)

CHAIR H PP: Now, M. Heaton, if you just
pl ease state your position for all of us. W
kind of got an understanding. |[|f there's any
reference that in the city and the photos or
anything you wish to refer to, please just |et
us. Go ahead, sir.

MR, HEATON. Ckay, I'Il try. [|'m Jack
Heaton. | live with ny wife, Pam Heaton, for
56 years. W noved to Chesterfield fromOhio

in 1978. Made a couple trips away and nade it
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back five years yesterday. So, we're five

years new. W took a |look at this condom ni um
not condom nium PUD, | guess it's called, a
little over five years ago and deci ded to buy
it after | | ooked at very carefully in our
adventures and so forth to nake sure that we
could build a sunroom out the back. Since we
had one that we built in Whitnoor prior to this
that we enjoyed and spent nost of our tine
there. So, | guess the problemwould be if we
can't, 56 years is a long tine, but we'll |eave
that al one for now.

The setback, as Alyssa clearly told, is
20 feet. You all know that, of course. And
it's currently 12.7 feet into that, so it's
about 7.3 feet or so already into the setback,
the deck. The deck is old, and it's probably
going to need to be rebuilt, at |east sone of
the colums and so forth. And when we had the
sane problemat Witnoor, where the posts were
rotten and so forth and needed to cone out.
So, they had to cone out anyway; we're going to
have to build the thing over again, et cetera,
so why not build the sunroom so we can use it

year round. In the winter, it gets kind of
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cold again. And in the sumer, it gets very
hot. So, that's the purpose of why we're
trying to do this.

VWhat we | earned by building this sunroom
in Wiitnoor, was the size of it was not quite
as big as we should have made it. W used it
for partying and the normal things that we do.
And it was good for two of us, but not good for
the rest of the famly, the kids and so forth.
So, we said let's go up to the easenent. The
easenent is 10 feet off. |If we can go up to
the easenent, it gives us about 40 square feet
nore. W're asking for two feet nore space,
and if we got to do it, we mght as well do it
with as nuch as we could get, and that's
basically what we're trying to do. So, we're
asking for about 40 square feet.

CHAIR H PP:. So you want --

MR, HEATON. Six by six.

CHAIR HI PP: So, you want to encroach two
feet | ess than what you're already currently
encroaching; is that correct?

MR. HEATON: 2 feet nore.

CHAIR H PP: 2 feet nore, okay.

MR. HEATON: Yeah.
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CHAIR H PP: Because the deck itself
that -- did you purchase the hone wth the deck
al ready there?

MR HEATON:  Yeah.

CHAIR HI PP: So, the deck was al ready
there. It was already encroaching --

MR. HEATON:. Yeah, it's been there since
' 93.

CHAIR HHPP: Now, it cones tine to repl ace
it, instead of replacing it, you' d like to put
a sunroomon that's two feet bigger than the
deck itself right now?

MR. HEATON. That's right.

CHAIR HI PP:  Ckay.

MR. HEATON. Two feet.

CHAIR H PP: G eater.

MR. HEATON: And |I'ma trustee on our HOA,
and |1've now | ooked at 493 -- we have 88 doors.
There's a deck on 87 of the doors, and |'l|
tell you they're all over the line.

CHAIR H PP: Are there any sunroons over
the line?

MR. HEATON: On, there's a bunch of
sunroons as well. Most of the sunroons are on
the other side, because it's not backing up to
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Brooki ng Park. The other side just backs up to
trees. It would have been a better site --
better size -- better site for us to buy, but
they weren't avail abl e when we needed them so.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. M. Gaville?

MR. GRAVILLE: | just had a quick point of
clarification for staff. | thought | read that
t he deck was okay because it was uncovered to
be in the setback; is that correct?

M5. AHNER: Correct, so the ordinance,
it's an ol der ordinance and it sets up with
| anguage that specifically says that you could
have an outside deck encroach into the setback
as long as you have Pl anni ng Conm ssi on
approval. It does not say you can have
anyt hi ng ot her than an outside deck, so when
staff saw this cone in, and the transition
bet ween a sunroom and an outsi de deck, they
need to ultimately have a variance for a
sunroom versus the | anguage that states outdoor
deck. So, they're seeking --

MR, GRAVILLE: So -- so, the deck is
| egal , because it has the approval. [t can
encr oach.

CHAIR H PP:  Ckay.
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MR, GRAVILLE: It is typical with zoning
codes that the deck does change the dynamc. |
know it may seem sinple, but when you roof
It -- or not the deck, the roof changes and the
dynam ¢ and becones part of the structure, and,
you know, the setback is a building setback
line; so, decks generally -- decks or patios
are generally not considered a structure, but
when you're roofing, it's considered a
structure because how you deli neate between a
sunroom and a bedroom addi ti on and kit chen.
So, you know, a 20-foot setback line is a
pretty conmmon setback. It's not a huge
setback. 1've seen 30 and 40, 20 is pretty
comon, but | think -- | just want clarify
that's the distinction. Yes, practically
speaking, you're going two feet additional, but
it'"s the -- as you pointed out earlier, it's
the roofing of the structure.

CHAIR HI PP: And cl oser, yeah.

MR, GRAVILLE: And closer, that nakes a
di fference.

MR, HEATON: | would like to comment on
t hat .

CHAIR H PP: Yes, sir.
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MR. HEATON:. Several of the sunroons that
we see in our subdivision have sunroons or
screened in porches with a roof that were built
by the devel oper. So, they've been doing this
since '93 or before, I'mnot sure exactly.

MR. GRAVILLE: You definitely got one of
t he thi nnest backyards.

MR, HEATON. Onh, yeah, it is.

MR, GRAVILLE: It's pretty thin and it's a
pretty narrow |l ot, right?

MR. HEATON: Ch, yes. It sits with the --
the width of the house is --

MR. GRAVILLE: Yeah, | was just trying to
under stand what is uni que about the shape of
the property itself.

MR, HEATON: Ckay.

MR. GRAVILLE: The land you can't change.
| understand what you want to do, but what is
uni que about your property itself? Looks |ike
sone of your nei ghbors can have sunroons
because they have a lengthier -- they have nore
setback in the backyard. You're pretty nmuch
right up against the setback, right? Your
house is?

VMR HEATON: It's over the setback.
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MR GRAVILLE: What?

MR. HEATON: The house?

MR, GRAVILLE: The back of the house is
al nost - -

MR. HEATON. It's about -- yeah, you're
right. |It's about 7 feet.

MR. GRAVILLE: Yeah, it looks |ike your
nei ghbors have way nore than seven feet to get
to the setback |ine.

MR. HEATON: |If you | ook at the neighbors,
i f you | ook at --

CHAIR H PP: Stop right there, sir, stop.

MR. HEATON:  Sorry.

CHAIR HI PP: Can you put up that map so
everyone can --

MR HEATON:. | think you don't -- you
don't have the map on this one.

CHAIR H PP: Ch, we have sonething kind
of -- maybe --

MR, GRAVILLE: W have an aerial of the
l ot |ine.

MR, HEATON: Okay.

DR. WH TMAN: | have a question, right.
We're essentially asking for two variances: one
for the sunroom and one for the extra tw feet?
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M5. RADER: Yes, that was ny question,
t 00.

MR GRAVILLE: Well, it is a-- | think
it's one variance. The deck is legal to be in
there. It's not a two-foot variance. It's a
variance for the entire length; is that --

DR WH TMAN: He wants it |onger than the
deck is there.

MR, GRAVILLE: Well, | understand that.
It's an additional two feet on --

M5. AHNER: So, if | could read ny | ast
slide that | have in here. So, the applicant
Is seeking a variance to allow a sunroom w thin
t he setback, rather than an outdoor deck. So,
that is where Board of Adjustnent cones in.
It's just the difference between the | anguage
sunroom and outside deck. |If the Board were to
approve this, they would still have to go to
the Pl anni ng Comm ssion, and they would be the
ones that would be review ng the additional
encroachnment. So, |I'mnot asking the Board of
Adjustnent to review the additional
encroachnment. |It's really just the |anguage
bet ween sunroom and out si de deck.

CHAIR H PP:  Ckay.
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MR, GRAVILLE: So could --

CHAIR H PP: Thank you for that
clarification.

MR, GRAVILLE: So | understand Pl anning
and Zoni ng could say you can't go all the way
back or you have to --

M5. AHNER: Yes, so, | nean, there would
be sonething at play with Planning
Comm ssion - -

MR, GRAVILLE: To review how far an
encr oachnment occurred?

M5. AHNER: Yeah, correct. And they can
ei ther put up their surveys here, so the
| eft-hand side has the survey of the wood deck
that is out there today, and then the
right-hand side, that is a portion of the site
devel opnent plan show ng where the proposed
sunroom woul d go. As you can see there, the
sunroom proposed to be built right up to the
10 feet easenent line, where as of right now,
it's the deck itself is just short of that
10 foot easenent line. And | can also pull up
the image of the site if you prefer that
I nst ead.

CHAIR H PP:  Pardon?
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M5. AHNER:. | can also put up the aeri al
of this site if you prefer that instead --

CHAIR HHPP: Let's put the aerial up for a
nmoment. Now, that we've | ooked at that, let's
take a l ook at the aerial. That does give us a
little -- pardon ne, allergies. M. Heaton, if
you coul d answer a question that we have, which
is, as | ook at that, the cul-de-sac, you have
a very nice nei ghborhood there, and that's
Brooking -- that's the willowin the very top,
right? |s that correct?

MR. HEATON: | don't know if the wllows
are in the front or the back, frankly, but
Br ooki ng - -

CHAIR HPP: It's north in that --

MR. HEATON. -- Park -- yeah.

CHAIR HPP: But it's to your north,
right?

MR. HEATON. It's to our -- yeah, yes.

CHAIR HPP:. | like that. Okay. | guess
my question is as | look at all the terrain in
the other hones in the Wods MII| Cove Drive
area, | nean, everyone appears to -- it's hard
to tell whether they all have -- they all

appear to have decks, and, you know, you

Page 47

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F.
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179

LEXITAS
Page 48 of 214



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript of Proceedings

March 06, 2025

nmenti oned sunroofs. Many of them have sunroofs
on a different side --

MR. HEATON: There's a few on this side on
the side that 1'mon, and on the other side,
there's al nost every one of them No, that's
not true. There's about half of those on the
other side. | would say there's 20 to 30
roons, sunrooms in some cases, | guess you
don't have it over here, there's two or three
up in the front where they're in the back as
well. But the point I"'mtrying to nake sure
you understand is that the decks on the back
area, you're saying mne is the closest, our
isn't the closest to the end of the setback.

There are sone that are nuch further over
by just | ooking down the line. [If I'mclear,
"' m not clear.

CHAIR HI PP: So, how would you -- how
woul d you classify the hardship that's going
on?

MR, HEATON. Well, the hardship --

CHAIR HI PP: The nosquitoes and things --

MR, HEATON. Yeah, there's no nosquitoes.
It's hot in the sumer -- hotter in the sumer,

| guess, and it's cold in the winter, and we
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like to use it year round. There's not nuch
pl ace to get out and run, you know, you don't
have a great big area. So, that's a -- that
was sonet hing that we planned when we bought
this facility or this house --

CHAIR HI PP:  Ckay.

MR. HEATON. That's it --

CHAIR H PP: Good, thank you, sir. Any
nenber of the Board have question for --

M5. RADER: What do your nei ghbors say?
Because the sunroomis going to be enclosed as

opposed to open with a deck.

It's sonething |I've always done in any kind of

proj ect, whether here or sonewhere el se,

both sides. They said go do it, have fun, et
cetera, et cetera. They had no conments
negative, and you can see in the docunents.
CHAIR HI PP: Ckay, all right.
MR. HEATON. And, of course, |'ve talked

any problens? |'mgoing to stay out of the

MR. HEATON: |'ve talked to the nei ghbors.

tal ked to the neighbors next door. | talked on

to our -- the rest of our trustees. Say, |o0o0k,

this is what we're doing, and do you guys have

vote. You do it. They don't have any probl ens
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wth it either.

CHAIR HPP: City? Do you have anything
to state further?

M5. AHNER. The only thing I would add is
there is a letter of support fromthe nei ghbor
I n the package that was provided to you.

MR. HEATON: On both neighbors, right? O
there's an e-mail fromone and a letter from
t he ot her one.

M5. AHNER: Yes, | have that in the packet
avai |l abl e to the Board of Adjustnent.

MR. HEATON: Thank you.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. M. Hurt, do you have
any questions or conmments? You're way qui et
down there. | just want to nake sure we hear
fromyou when necessary. Are there any further
questions? Well, hardships cone in a variety
of degrees. The use of land -- could we flash
back, that's a great point, flashback to the
requi renents and see what thoughts we have as
we nove into our deliberations on the points.
Hardship is definitely a situation where |
see -- I'mnot sure. But the fact that
everyone has done it also gives ne a little bit

of, like, you know, we can't hold you back if
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everybody has done it, and you're a trustee,
and you' ve got the honmeowners' support, you
know, in addition to being a trustee. How | ong
have you been a trustee, sir?

MR. HEATON: Well, it's alittle over
t hree years.

CHAIR H PP:  Ckay.

MR, HEATON: |'m about through with this
one.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. No inpact on --

MR, HEATON: And | respect what you guys
have to do, so.

CHAIR HI PP:  Ckay.

MR. HEATON: | understand conpletely.

DR. WH TMAN. So, M. Heaton, | have one
thing to say to you --

MR HEATON:  Yes?

DR. VWH TMAN: | have 59 years with ny
spouse.

MR. HEATON: Congratul ati ons.

CHAIR H PP: W're tal king about the
interest of justice here --

MR. HEATON: | don't know -- | don't know
that's the hardship. | was trying to think
about that. It's not --
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DR. WH TMAN. Sone days it is.

MR HEATON: It's not.

CHAIR HHPP: Al right. Barring any -- is
t here anyone in the audi ence here who wi shes to
have a conmment regarding this particular
request for a variance? GCkay, that being in
the negative, M. Heaton, you nmay sit down,
sir.

MR. HEATON: Thank you.

CHAIR H PP: Thank you very nuch for your
t houghts and the information. The chair -- the
chair will entertain a board (sic) relative to
BA-012025. Is that --

DR. WHI TMAN: Met approval .

CHAIR HPP: |Is there a notion to --

DR VWH TMAN: | nmde --

MR BLOCK: Second.

CHAIR HI PP: Seconded, okay, so pl ease
call -- please call the vote.

M5. BLESENER  Kat herine Hi pp?

CHAIR HPP: | vote to approve the
vari ance request.

M5. BLESENER: Brendan Bl ock?

MR. BLOCK: | vote to approve.

M5. BLESENER: Jeanni e Rader?
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M5. RADER:.  Yes.

M5. BLESENER: Barb Wit man?

DR. WHI TMAN:  Appr ove.

CHAIR HI PP: The approval is -- the
request for the variance is approved. Thank
you. | would nake a note, a point of order on
the first variance, we did not entertain a
notion and second, so it's a little ad hoc.

Al four of us voted for it before the purpose
of the first --

MR, GRAVILLE: | think it's okay. | think
t here was enough verbi age --

CHAIR H PP: W have a quorum on the
matter --

MR, GRAVILLE: W can take care of that.

It was -- the intent was to approve --

CHAIR H PP: Ckay, yes, very good.

MR, GRAVILLE: In the positive.

CHAIR HPP: Now, we're going to nove onto
the third petition on the agenda BA012024.
Before | began that, M. Heaton, thank you very
much. You are approved, sir.

MR. HEATON: Thank you very nuch.

CHAIR HHPP: If you'd like to stay, we

appreciate all your work as a trustee, and
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you' re hel pi ng the nei ghborhood. W w sh you
success with your sunroof or sunroom

MR, HEATON. Thank you.

CHAIR HPP: Ckay. So, the third petition
on the agenda is BA-01-2024, Sunny's Spa at
13714 A ive Boulevard, Suite A WII the staff
pl ease present their exhibits --

MR GRAVILLE: Staff -- staff will not be
doing the presentation on that. I1'mgoing to
provi de the background on it.

CHAIR HPP:. M. Gaville will provide the
backgr ound.

MR, GRAVILLE: For our purposes, Chris
Gaville, Cty Attorney, | wll be sitting up
here with the Board of Adjustnent. |'m going
to give our parties a chance to configure.
Jacob, you guys want to go up head and grab a
coupl e of chairs? And M. Kl oos, you m ght
want to grab a couple of chairs over there, if
that's okay, kind of rearrange.

So, as they're getting situated, this is a
process under city ordi nance 605.250. If you
want just grab a couple of chairs or sit there,
M. Kl oos, however is fine. A process under

650. 070 in which a business |icense for Sunny's
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Spa was not renewed based on the beliefs that
the -- the operation of the spa by

605. 070(C) (3), 605.070(C)(6). This is an appeal
froman informal hearing and a findings of fact
and conclusions of |aw rendered by the city
adm nistrator with regards to uphol ding the
non-renewal of Sunny's Spa's business |icense.
Since this is Sunny's Spa's appeal,

M. Gickfield, can you pl ease announce your
nanme and -- and -- yeah, that's great. Can you
pl ease announce your nane and what your role is
and i ntroduce your client as well?

MR. HEATON. Thank you, Chris. M nane is
Jacob dickfield. I'mattorney for Sunny's
Spa. Setting next to ne is. Jie Cao, the owner
of Sunny's Spa.

MR, GRAVILLE: Okay. Well, give ne a
second. M. Kloos, can you pl ease announce who
are you and who you have here as any w tnesses?

MR, KLOOS: Sure, should | go to the
m cr ophone?

MR. GRAVILLE: You don't have to go to the
m crophone if you don't want to or maybe she's
going to give you a m crophone.

MR, KLOOS: M nane is Ben Kl oos,
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representing the Gty of Chesterfield, and |

br ought Detective John Halliday with ne as ny
witness from St. Louis County Police
Depart nent.

MR, GRAVILLE: Ckay. So, this is an
appeal of the record of the City. | would
first ask the Chair to take into evidence as
the record the packet that was provided with
regards to the cover neno, as to why we're here
in the standard, the ordi nances, ordinance
section 605.070, 605.250, the Notice of Public
Hearing and Publication in the Countian. The
Fi ndi ngs of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law entered
into by Mke Geisel, the city adm ni strator on
Septenber 10t h, 2024; the appeal, which is here
filed by Mayer Klein; M. Gickfield is here on
behal f of their law firmand his client. And I
think that is it.

Ch, the original business |license
application, the records for the city regarding
t he business |icenses and the letter as far as
not non-renewal. So, that the Cty's record
that is under appeal here today. And, Chair,
with that, | don't know if there's any

addi ti onal questions since the record has been
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made part of the record. | believe it's

M. Gickfield s appeal, so he shall be the
first one to go. W do have a court reporter
here or -- strike that. An interpreter here so
that we nake sure we get it correctly. So slow
us down if we're not follow ng the rules.

MR, G.I CKFI ELD:  Thank you.

MR, GRAVILLE: But he won't get sworn as
he's the attorney on this.

MR, G.I CKFI ELD:  Thank you.

CHAIR HI PP: The speaker wll.

MR, GLICKFIELD: I'mjust going to nmake a
few opening remarks, then I'l|l exam ne ny
client wwth the interpreter for everyone's
benefit. Thank you.

DR WH TMAN: | need for you to be cl oser
to the m crophone.

MR, GLICKFIELD: How is this?

DR. VWH TMAN:. Better, thank you.

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: kay, | would like to
make sure everyone can hear ne.

OPENI NG STATEMENT BY MR Gl CKFI ELD:

MR G.I CKFI ELD:  So, ny nane is Jacob

dickfield. I'mhere as attorney for Jie Cao,

and her business, Sunny's Spa. W're here this
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eveni ng to appeal the denial of a renewal of a
busi ness |icense for Sunny's Spa. A business
| ocated at 13714 dive Boulevard in
Chesterfield. There are a |ot of dates here,
so pl ease bear with ne.

Si nce 2019, Jie Cao has own and operated

Sunny's Spa, a conpany which provides
traditional Chinese nmassage. She had worked at
the spa for several nonths before she purchased
it fromits prior owners. During that tine,
she did typically enploy two to three nassage
t herapi sts, brought value to the community, and
for five years, never had any issues of any
kind. She is a hardworking |egal inmm grant and
naturalized citizen of the United States and
Jieis sitting next to ne tonight. |In January
of 2024, one of Jie's longtine enpl oyees,
Wendy, needed to return to China for famly
reasons. To replace her, Jie hired a woman
naned Lisa. At the tine, a friend of Jie's
nanmed Sasha al so worked at the spa.

Both of these wonen are over the age of 70
years. On May 9th --

CHAIR HI PP: They're over 707

MR. GLI CKFI ELD:  Yes, both of these wonen,
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both Lisa and Sasha are over the age of 70
years. On May 9th, 2024, the police arrived at
Sunny's Spa and took her and two enpl oyees into
custody. Jie voluntarily permtted the police
to inspect her books and gave them her wall et,
all of which was returned to her. Through an
interpreter, Jie was told that there was
prostitution occurring at her spa. Jie was
shocked and denied the allegation, truthfully
telling the police that she does not condone
that sort of thing. Although arrests were nade
agai nst Lisa and Sasha, Jie did not actually

W tness the arrest.

MR KLOOS: M. dickfield, 1"'mgoing to
interrupt you for a second. Seens |like you're
testifying. Do we need to swear you in?

MR, GLICKFIELD: I'mintroducing the story
and at the end, I wll ask ny client --

MR, KLOOS: So, this is what your evidence
wi |l show?

MR. G.I CKFI ELD:  Yeah --

MR. GRAVILLE: Al right.

MR GLICKFI ELD: My evidence is going to
show every part of this. | did not realize

that just -- this | did not prepare for, but I
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did not realize the interpreter would be

interpreting everything that | said. | thought
that | would nake a presentation and then
exam ne ny wtness, who has no idea of what |'m
saying right now She has no ability to
understand me without the interpreter.

Nevertheless, all of ny -- all of this is
going to be shown by ny witness. Lisa -- so,
al though, the arrests were nade agai nst Lisa
and Sasha, Jie did not wwtness this, but she
did confront themimedi ately afterwards. Lisa
admtted to having been arrested but denied any
wr ongdoi ng.

Neverthel ess, Jie took the side of |aw
enforcenent and term nated Lisa that day.
Sasha deni ed having been arrested and said she
was just taken into the custody the sane way
that Jie was, which Jie believed. Jie only
becone aware of Sasha's arrest on August 26,
2024, after a hearing before the Chesterfield
Cty admnistrator, and Jie fired her that day
despite their long friendship. On that day,
Jie did not yet know the outcone of the city
adm ni strator's decision and fired Sasha

because she does want even a whiff of
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I Mpropri ety i n her busi ness.

This is an appeal fromthat hearing. At
that hearing, we were told that no parties had
any access to the police reports and the police
read redacted portions of the police report to
us and the Gty. W found out there had been
an investigation into the spa, because it was
bel i eved there was human trafficking occurring
there. The police explained that they had seen
the spa close and the enpl oyees did not | eave
t hrough the front door, and, on that basis,
concl uded that the enpl oyees nust be | ocked up
i nside and forced to spend the night there.
This conclusion led to a warrant and a series
of undercover operations by a special task
force of the St. Louis County Police
Depart nent.

About five weeks ago, after nonths of
i nformal requests and being told that the Cty
di d possess the police report since they cane
fromthe St. Louis County Police and not even a
Sunshi ne Request request would hel p, we were
provi ded the police reports. The police
reports show no evidence of human trafficking,

but they do indicate that when the elderly
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massage t herapi sts were asked to perform sexual
services for noney by the undercover police,
they did provide those services.

The police identified these actions as
evi dence of a m sdeneanor infraction and
viol ation of Section 262 of the county code,
whi ch could cone with a penalty of $500 or
sixth nonths in jail. No evidence of anyone
living in the spa was found. As it turns out,
the reason the enployees don't | eave fromthe
front door is because they park in the back.

Interestingly, the police report also
stated that not only did both Lisa and Sasha
deny any w ongdoi ng, but they also stated that
Jie does not tolerate this sort of conduct.
They made clear that Jie wants a legitimte
establ i shnent --

MR. GRAVILLE: M. dickfield, that's
hearsay. This is a Board of Adjustnent
heari ng.

MR, GLICKFIELD: It's in the police
report. Should we introduce the police reports
to evidence and have nme sit here and find it
where it says that they both told the police
that that's what happened --
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MR GRAVILLE: It's an opening statenent,

M. Gickfield. [I'mjust asking you to state
what your evidence is show ng. You' re reading
froma police report. And that's fine that --
if you intend to introduce the police report
into evidence, and I'll let you proceed.

MR G.ICKFI ELD: | nean -- okay. So,
after the May 9th, 2024, police operation -- is
there -- is there a rule against hearsay in the
muni ci pal code?

MR GRAVILLE: |'msorry?

MR, GLICKFIELD: 1Is there's a rul e against
hearsay in the nunicipal code?

MR, GRAVILLE: W're not under the
muni ci pal code. W' re under the Adm nistrator
Procedure Act.

CHAIR HPP: So, this is a quasi-judicial
board - -

MR. CGLI CKFI ELD:  Yes.

CHAIR HI PP: And | understand you're
maki ng your opening statenent. |f you could
just summarize a little nore briefly, that
woul d be appreciated, sir.

MR, G.I CKFI ELD: Thank you.

CHAIR H PP:  Thank you.
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MR, GLI CKFI ELD:  So, Jie nmade nunerous
remedi al nmeasures, of which I'll introduce
evi dence right here. And before | hand themto
you, I'Il just tell you what they are, that --
to ensure nothing like this could ever happen
again. She wote an English-Chi nese agreenent,
whi ch enpl oyees nust sign in order to work for
her. She also puts signs in the massage roons,
so that no illegal conduct can occur, and they
can refuse service for any reason. She took
the | ocks off the massage room doors and
requires that they be slightly ajar so no
enpl oyee could be confortable commtting
i1l egal contact therein.

When the city admnistrator denied Jie's
appeal in August, one of the reasons was that
Sasha still worked at the spa. This was
because Jie did not realize that Sasha had been
arrested and appeared to be the only person
t hat had done anything inproper. Jie respects
the police very nuch, as she will testify very
soon and respects |law trenendously as she w |
testify very soon. And had she been told all
the details, she would have fired Sasha

i medi ately as she did with Lisa.
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We conme here to appeal this decision and

ask that Jie's business |license be renewed.
She did not do anything wong herself and had
no i dea that other people were doing anything
I nproper in her enploy. She has taken every
remedi al action she can think of, and she wl|
tell you that she will agree to any further
action requested by the city.

Al'l of us here are in business of sone
sort or another, and we've all had issues with
enpl oyees who either done sonething inproper,
gone rogue in sone way and that's the nature of
being in business. And it's very difficult to
j udge a business over it by the bad conduct of
enpl oyees. W are judged by the way we handl e
it. Jie has done everything that she can to
nmove forward. Ten nonths have passed, and
there's been no further incident.

To our know edge, charges were never filed
agai nst Lisa or Sasha and the investigation
into the spa has ended. Jie sinply asks for
the sane grace that all of us require in order
to keep going. She's sorry that these things
happened and will do whatever it takes to nake

sure it never happens again. Ten nonths of
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solid legal results speak to that. | tell you
all this because Jie does not speak English,
and without the interpreter, she would have no
I dea what |'m saying, but | want give her the
opportunity to testify to all of the points
|'ve just made, and before | bring her in, |
just do want to hand you guys the docunents
that | brought.

MR. GRAVILLE: M. dickfield, could
show -- have you provided M. Kloos?

MR, GLICKFI ELD: | provided themto the
City at our last hearing, so it's in possession
of the City for the entire tine.

MR. GRAVILLE: Okay. Could you have
M. Kloos |ook at them before you offer these
exhi bi ts.

MR. G.I CKFI ELD: Sure. Here you go
(I ndi cating).

CHAIR HIPP: Hold on. Wit a m nute.
Conme over here, sir. First of all, we need to
have these marked and noted for file. So,
could you pl ease give those to the city and
have t hem mar ked.

(Hearing Exhibit 1 marked.)
CHAIR HPP: Sir, before we | ook at them
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woul d you pl ease have your wi tness sworn and
testify and then tell us what we're | ooking at
slowy and i ntroduce them as you go al ong.

MR, GRAVILLE: M. Kloos, would you m nd
putting that m crophone and maybe we'll swear
her in and have her testify up there. Does
that work for you?

MR. GLI CKFI ELD:  Yeah, that's fine.

CHAIR HI PP: Whatever is nore confortable.
| f she would Iike to remain seated, would the
interpreter --

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: Wuld you prefer to be
sitting or standing with the w tness?

THE | NTERPRETER: Standing is fine.

CHAIR HHPP:. My | say before we began
this process, | just want to -- it's little a
murky in it's nore of a city issue here, but
our standard, and maybe it's M. Gavois's, our
standard as a Board of Adjustnent to determ ne
whet her or not she should be permtted to have
her license, what's the word reinstated?

MR, GRAVILLE: To either affirmor
overturn --

CHAIR H PP:  Ckay.

MR. GRAVILLE: -- the decision of city
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adm ni strator not to renew the |icense.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. And what is our
standard in neasuring whether to affirmor not
affirn®

MR. GRAVILLE: You all are invested
with -- you all are invested with a w de
| atitude of discretion on this, you know, with
regards to the way it is set upis, you all --
what | would say is this is, you all are
review ng a decision an adm ni strative deci sion
of the city admnistrator. So, if you believe
it was arbitrary and capacious, it was done in
error, there was sone information that was not
provided, | think M. dickfield has raised an
issue and it's a good point, you can nodify the
decision of the city admnistrator. So, you
coul d reverse and add conditions, | think
that's what you are getting to, correct,

M. dickfield?

MR GLICKFI ELD: Yes, we are --

MR. GRAVILLE: So, you can -- you can
affirmthe decision; you can reverse the
deci sion outright; you can nodify the decision;
but you | ooking at that decision based on the
evi dence here today, essentially de novo, a
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new, based on the incident that the nonrenewal
was based on the investigation and the evidence
that was shown at the first admnistrative
hearing. So, you can reverse, you can affirm
you can nodi fy that decision. You have a w de
range of latitude with regards to that.

(O f-the-m crophone di scussion.)

MR, GRAVILLE: It doesn't. So, it's a
little bit different, so it's not a building
use. We're not |looking at a hardship with
regard to the property. Essentially, Chapter
89 of the Readvised Statutes can essentially
refer over, and that's what this ordinance
does, it refers over to you all the ability to
hear the appeal of Mke Ceisel, the city
adm nistrator's decision and to determne is
this -- was this decision arbitrary; was it
capricious; was it supported by the evidence?
| f you guys |l ook in the packet you received as
part of the city record, is that findings of
fact and conclusions of |aw a decision that
occurred.

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: So, |'m actually
confused, because it is de novo or based upon

error? Because --
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MR, GRAVILLE: Based on what?

MR, GLICKFIELD: 1Is it a de novo decision
or it is based upon error?

MR. GRAVILLE: Based on who?

MR Gl CKFI ELD:  Error.

CHAIR H PP:  Error.

MR, GLICKFIELD: Only if they find --

MR, GRAVILLE: Error

MR Gl CKFlI ELD: -- error --

MR. GRAVILLE: No, no, no. It is de novo
because the way it works, it is confusing, but
it's the way adm ni strative procedure | aw works
I's, you have an uncontested case, which is what
occurred in front of Mke Ceisel. The
review ng entity, whether it's the court or
whether it's this body, nakes a determ nation
de novo of the facts. So, you all determ ne,
and then they conpare their determ nation of
the facts to the decision of Mke Ceisel, and
t hen they make a deci sion whether or not that
decision of the city adm nistrator was
arbitrary and capricious. So, it is de novo,
but then it is a conparison to the deci sion,
because they don't have the right to render
their own decision, they only have the right to
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overturn the decision. Does that nmake sense?

MR G.I CKFI ELD:  Okay.

CHAIR H PP: Now, |I'mconfused. W can
overturn or not overturn, but we then also go
in different -- like, that's yes or no, but
there is -- | just --

MR, GRAVILLE: You can -- you can nodify
the decision as well.

CHAIR H PP:  Ckay.

MR, GLICKFIELD: And it can be nodified --

CHAIR HPP: And it's nore than yes or no,
it's -- it's maybe could we add -- |'mjust
hypot hetically, haven't heard the facts, just
want to know what ny range of options are,
could we, if we were so inclined, | don't want
to junp ahead of nyself, but would we have it
Wi thin our opportunity of the parameters of our
findings to say we woul d gi ve her back her
license in a condition of on a probationary
period? For exanple, | just wonder if that's
an option.

MR, GRAVILLE: The problemis, is you do
not have a right to | egislate the business
|icense ordinances. | think wthin a

reasonabl e di sagree, you can accept the
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conditions to overturn it; you could, | think,
suggest, but | don't believe that you can add
conditions to the business |icense, because
part of the thing is this is based on the
conduct that occurred --

CHAIR H PP: Right.
MR. GRAVILLE: Right? And the actions
that occurred then.
CHAIR H PP: Right.
MR GRAVILLE: So --
CHAIR H PP: Ckay. | think we can
conti nue --
MR, GRAVILLE: Make our way through it.
CHAIR H PP: Al right, sir, go ahead,
pl ease, sir.
MR G.I CKFI ELD: Okay, can you pl ease --
(Court reporter clarification.)
(Jie Cao and Interpreter May Huang sworn.)
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR G| CKFI ELD:
Q Can you pl ease state and spell your full
name?
A (Through the interpreter) My nane is Jie
Cao.
Q When did you nove to the United States?
B com 1% PErLes a5 sttes s Kced et e Neveda Regisuaion asor. - pJEXITAS
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t he spa?

Q
A

opened t

Q
A

Q

Sasha?

A

Q
A
Q

2010, end of June.

When did you cone to St. Louis, Mssouri?
2019.

And you |ived here ever since?

That is correct.

What's your date of birth?

January 6th, 1972.

You're the owner of Sunny's Spa, correct?
That is correct.

How many people currently work for you at

Currently, | only have one enpl oyee.

What is the nane of that enployee?

Her name is Wendy.

And how | ong have you known Wendy?

Around five -- about five years since |
he Sunny's Spa, she's with ne.

And how ol d is Wendy?

Fifty-eight.

Did you have enpl oyees naned Li sa and

Prior, yes.
Did you fire those enpl oyees?
That is correct.

Do you know where they are right now?
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A | don't have any contact with them

Q Do you know how old Lisa is?

A They both are 70 years ol d, around.

Q When did you buy Sunny's Spa?

A | remenber that, | think, it's
Novenber 2019.

Q From whom did you buy it?

A The prior owner nanmed Tina, | bought from
her .

Q Did you work for Tina before you bought
t he spa?

A Yes, | worked for her.

Q How nmuch did you pay for the spa?

A kay, | renenber | bought -- | pay 50, 000
for the shop. Also, | renodel, update, that was
10, 000.

Q So, does that nean your total investnent
is $60, 000?

A That is correct.

Q Tell me about the work incidents involving
the police in May of 2024 in your own words?

THE I NTERPRETER |'msorry, interpreter

need clarification for the question, please.

Q (By M. dickfield) Yes, in your own
words, tell ne about the incidents involving the
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police that occurred on May 9th, 20247

THE | NTERPRETER Gve ne -- | need a
pause for ne to transl ate.
A (Through the interpreter) Ckay, | renenber
| ast year in May 9th in the afternoon around 2: 00
o' cl ock, sonebody cone in, asked for Lisa. They --
he asked four tinmes. Back then, | was in the back

taking a break. So, when | heard that he's | ooking

for Lisa so -- but Lisais working at that tinme, so,
| told himLisa isn't here but he's working -- she's
wor ki ng. Okay. After that, | told himthat Lisa

isn't here, she's working, and he told ne he's
police, and they cone in -- cane in -- a |lot of
people cane in at the sane tine.

And then they took Lisa and Sasha to
t he back of the shop. Then | asked them what
happened? Police said I'mtrafficking. | said, no,
|"mnot. Ckay, | told them no, we are not, because
Lisa is an American resident, and then Sasha al so a
green card holder. That's a permanent resident,
yes. Lisa and | are citizens, but Sasha is
per manent resident, kind of green card. Then after
that, a | ot of people cone and -- cane and searched
the shop. About two hours. kay, | don't know when
they took Sasha and Lisa. They took both of them
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away, but after two hours, around two hours, police

took me to the station. Then |I asked the police,
why? What had happened? Wy they searched ny shop?
Because he says sonebody report us. GCkay. And then
March 12th, also April 25th, sonebody report us or
say -- nmake a claim Yeah, then | ask why? W
didn't do anything. Wy they have to report us?
Ckay, then he replied with that was sonebody in our
shop touched sonebody's private -- private place.
Ckay, touched man's private side.

| told themthat's inpossible because
nmy enpl oyee always tell themthat in front, that we
are just massage, pure massage. Nothing really
going to do anything. Back then, | was in shock
because when they first hired, | have a signed
agreenent there's no sexual service in this spa, in
this -- okay. About -- police and I, we tal k about
an hour after that. They send ne to the -- back to
the spa, the shop. Then a police told ne, they were
going to take nme to a jail, but |I'mnot sure what
was actually -- is -- he took ne there is mainly,
because he want ne to bring that to enpl oyee, out.
That's about what happened that day.

Q Did you give the police your books and

records?
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A No, no not hi ng.

Q The police didn't ask to see any books and
records fromyou?

A No.

Q So, I'"'mgoing to ask you sone questions
about the nmassage therapi st who had police issues.
When did you hire Sasha?

A Ckay, Sasha hired 2020, end of Septenber.

Q When did you hire Lisa?

A Lisa was hired January 22nd, 2024.

Q And, to be clear, the incidents that you
are aware of occurred in March and April of 2024; is
that correct?

A Yeah, back then | don't. Police told ne.

Q Ckay. Wen did you termnate Lisa's
enpl oynent with you?

THE | NTERPRETER: Need clarification for

t he question, please.

Q (By M. dickfield) Wien did you fire
Li sa?

A (Through the interpreter) On that day. On
that day. Sane day, | fired her.

Q And that sanme day is the day that the
police cane, right?

A That's correct. Yeah, that day when |
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pi cked themup after the -- | fired them

Q That day is May 9th, 2024, right?

A Yeah, that is correct.

Q Before you fired Lisa, did you hear any
conpl ai nts about her?

A No.

Q When did you first becone aware that Lisa
m ght be touching custoners' private parts?

A First of all, | have to say that | told
every enpl oyee when they first hired, | told them
this is just massage. | also wll nonitoring (sic)
how -- how they do the massage. Watever they did,
| noticed May 9th, that day.

Q kay. Did you -- so before the police
told you that they had reason to believe that Lisa
was touching custoners' private parts, you had no
I dea; is that correct?

A No, | don't, totally not.

Q When did you term nate Sasha's
enpl oynent -- when did you fire Sasha?

A So, back then, the police only cane for
Lisa. They didn't -- | fired -- | fired Sasha, was
it fromlast hearing? That day? August 26.

Q kay. And is that first time you found

out that Sasha m ght al so be touchi ng custoners’
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private parts?

A Back in May 9th, when police cone for
Lisa, | -- conme for Lisa, | didn't know Sasha was
i nvol ved. So, August 26, | fired Sasha.

Q |s that the first -- is that the first
date that you found out that Sasha m ght be doi ng
this, too?

A That is correct, because prior everybody
signed the agreenent, this is just for massage only.

Q Ckay. Have you spoken to Lisa or Sasha
since you fired thenf

A No.

Q kay. | think that was a no on the

record, right?

A | " m sorry.
Q We got a no on the record on that.

Nei t her of these wonen still work for you, do they?
A No.

Q So, now only Wendy works for you, correct?

A That is correct.

Q Have you had any problens or conplaints
about Wendy?

A No.

Q Do you want wonen to offer sexual services

at your spa?

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
Page 80 of 214



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript of Proceedings March 06, 2025

Page 80

A "' msorry, what?

Q Do you want wonen to offer sexual services
at the spa?

A Not anybody wants offer that kind of
servi ce.

Q Do you think prostitution is norally
accept abl e?

A No.

Q When this was going on, were you aware of
any massage therapi st having sexual contact with
customers?

A |"'msorry, what was --

Q Prior to May 9th, 2024, were you aware
t hat any massage therapi st were having any sexual
contact with any custoners?

A No.

Q Do you have | ocks on the doors to the
massage roons? Do you have | ocks on the doors to
t he massage roons?

A Sorry. Yeah, the nmassage roons don't have
| ock. W always have a way to open the door.

Q Ckay. So, the doors are always slightly
open, correct?

A Yeah, that is correct.

Ckay. So a passerby would see if
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sonet hi ng i nappropriate was happening; is that
accur at e?

A Yes. | already said, | supervision their
work all the tine.

Q Do you respect the laws of Mssouri? Do
you respect the laws of M ssouri and the United
St ates?

A Sorry. | respect very.

Q Do you respect the police of St. Louis
county and the City of Chesterfield?

A Yes, very.

Q Have you cooperated with the police up
until now?

A Yes.

Q Prior to these arrests, did you ever have
any ot her nmssage therapists who were arrested for
simlar reasons?

A No, never.

Q Have you ever had police cone into the spa
prior to these incidents?

A No.

Q Since these two wonen were arrested, do
you have any issues wth this sort of behavior?

A No.

Q To your know edge, has anyone ever sl ept

T com 7125 OPeates n ll S statesandts ensed where redulred Nevada Reglsraton #1267, pSEXITAS

Page 82 of 214



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript of Proceedings March 06, 2025

. . Page 82
overnight in the spa?

A No, never. W have our own apartnent.

Q What can you do to avoid future simlar
I nci dent s?

A For the enploynent, | did have them-- or
| do will have a signed agreenent. Yeah, it says on
the agreenent that we only provi de nmassage, but
nothing -- anything is not allowed to do any sex
activity. And then | also told themonce if this
happened -- in case this happened, | will fire them
right -- right away. This is to the enpl oyee.

Ckay, so in each room we have a post on there says
we only provide massage. And then if you request
nore than that that we have the right to refuse to
provi de servi ce.

Q | "' m going to approach so she can
aut henticate this docunent. |s this the paper that
hangs on the wall that you're referring to?

A First one is the post on the room the
service room Then the second was -- the second is
t he agreenent.

Q And the third is the agreenent in Chinese,
correct?

A The third one is translating.

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: Okay. May | now
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i ntroduce this as evidence?

CHAIR H PP: Yes, you may, sir. Thank
you. Any objections to the adm ssion of this
as evidence? GCkay. So, we'll -- this is
Exhi bit Hearing A-1.

MR, G.I CKFI ELD: Yeah, it was nmarked by
the court reporter as 1, so it's fine.

CHAIR H PP: Hearing 1, thank you.

(Exhibit Hearing 1 admtted onto the transcri pt
record.)

MR, GLICKFI ELD: | just have a few nore
guesti ons.

Q (By M. dickfield) How do you feel -- how
do these incidents nake you feel?

A | feel very enbarrassing and sad, because
| already told themthis is not supposed -- this is
not allowed to do this kind of thing. | feel very
really sad and enbarrassing it happened.

Q How do you feel about living in Anerica?

A | " ve been here 15 years. | aman Anerican
citizen. | love the United States. M children --
my daughter is in San D ego Medical School. She
al ready conpl eted sixth year of nedical school. |
like United States. A lot of freedom Everybody's
Ki nd.
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Q VWhat will happen to you if the spa cl oses?

VWhat will happen to you if the spa cl oses?

A Sorry. The effect will be alot. A big
effect, because |I'ma single nom

Q WIlIl you be in default on the | ease?

A My daughter need ny support for her
tuition.

DR. WHI TMAN: | have sone Kl eenex here.
THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Thank
you.

A And this is ny only job. | support ny
daughter's tuition. It's a lot. The living cost
over San Diego is also very high. Yeah, | need this
j ob, because | need to support to ny daughter to
conpl ete her education. | hope -- | truly beg for
the city hall wll renew ny |license because | do
need this job, and also ny enpl oyee need this job,
too. | truly, truly hope that city hall wll
consider renew ny license -- renew ny license

because | do need a job to support and ny enpl oyee

al so needed this job. |'mhere to beg your help,

hope I can get ny |license renewed. Also, | wll

guarantee to city hall it never going to happen this

kind of incident in the future of ny shop. | also

hope that you -- city hall can al so supervision our
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shop, too. | do really, really need this job to
support ny daughter. |I'mtruly, truly asked for
your hel p.

CHAIR HI PP: Thank you.

MR, GLICKFI ELD: | actually have a couple

nore questi ons.

CHAIR HI PP:  Ckay.

Q (By M. dickfield) Do you have a | ease
for the spa?

A Yes.

Q And when does that | ease end?

A April 2004 (sic), | renew ny |ease for
anot her five years.

Q I n what year did you --

A April 2024. | just renewed for another
five years.

Q | see. So, that would be a hardship and a
loss to if you have a signed | ease that you nust pay
but you can't operate a business; is that correct?

A Yeah, yeah, it is a hardship for ne,
because 2024, April, | just signed five-year |ease.
So, if I"'mnot be able to open ny busi ness, every
year so -- I'msorry, every nonth, | still have to
pay for the rent. Also, ny apartnent. | also need
to pay rent for apartnent and ny daughter's tuition,
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support of ny daughter.

So, | really, really very care about
my job. | treasures. So, | do hope that city hall
can renew ny license. | really need the license to
open ny busi ness.

MR, G.I CKFlI ELD: W have nothing nore to
add. W al so have nothing to hide, so
encour age any nenber --

CHAIR HI PP: Do you have any further
docunent ati ons that you had nmarked that you
wanted to --

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: No, they would just be
dupl i cat es.

CHAIR HI PP:  Ckay.

MR, G.I CKFI ELD: | have many dupli cates,
if you would like --

CHAIR HHPP. No, we're --

(Court reporter clarification.)

MR, GLICKFI ELD: | was just saying, | have
many duplicates because | brought duplicates in
case everyone wanted copies, but if only one is
necessary, that's all | have then, and we
encour age any nenber of the Board of Adjustnent
to ask any questions of Ms. Jie that they would

| i ke to.
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CHAIR HI PP:. Questions fromthe Board? |
have a question fromof the Board. How |ong
did you operate your business here in
Chesterfield at this |ocation?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Five
years,

CHAIR HI PP: Five years.

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Five
years.

CHAIR HPP: Al right. And during this
five year period of tinme, have you nmaintained
approxi mately three enpl oyees?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) It
real depends on the business. Like, right now,
the business is not good. | only have one
enpl oyee. It varies, depends.

CHAIR H PP: | guess what |'mgetting at
Is maybe, M. Gaville, I'mlooking at the fact
that you as the owner of this business had
these -- young | adies or these wonen as your
enpl oyees who were -- appears fromthe
evi dence, | know we're going to get further
into it, but to not be in conpliance with the
| aw and havi ng services rendered that weren't

part of your business operations in an illegal

Page 87
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way. How did you not know this was goi ng on?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Well,
we really don't talk a lot or we really don't
chat together, because once we go hone, we
tired. W just want to go to bed. W really
not tal k about it.

CHAIR H PP: But as the owner and the
manager of this business, how can you fail to
noti ce what your enployers (sic) may be doing
I n your prem ses?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) First
of all, when they first canme, | have them sign
agreenment it's massage only. No other service
or sex-related activity. And they already know
this is only for nmassage.

CHAIR HI PP: But the signing of the
agreenent, whether you fix it up alittle bit
or you have it at the beginning, you did not --
you have a responsibility to enforce the | ans
of Mssouri, and so on, and Chesterfield. |
nean, | see you as a manager failing to be
responsi bl e for your enployee's conduct.

Pl ease help ne to understand. | know there's a
hardshi p, but how will you prevent that from

occurring in the future should we allow your --
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you to have your business |icense restored?

How wi || you prevent that?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Ckay,
so | have them signed agreenent. Also, | wll
add, like, if everything -- or any tine, | find
out sonething suspicious, | will report themto
the police or to the city hall.

CHAIR HPP: And | want to nmake sure |
under stand: the enployers that you had --
enpl oyees that you had, did they live in the
bui | di ng where they worked? Did they live
there? D d they stay there?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) No,
they don't. They don't live there. W rent
our own apartnent. W live at apartnent. W
rent our own.

CHAIR H PP: And the apartnent you rent is
not co-located where the business is |ocated;
Is that correct?

THE W TNESS: (Through interpreter) Yeah,
it's two different |ocations.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. Thank you. Any
guestions based on ny questions?

DR WH TMAN. \What does it take to get a

i cense as a massage therapist in Mssouri?
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VWhat is the training requirenments?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) | have
to go to school.

DR. VWH TMAN:. How | ong?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) 500
hours, about half a year. Then | have to get a
federal |icense about two to three nonths.

DR, VWH TMAN: And is there a test or do
you just apply and say | have these 500 hours?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Yes,
there is an exam all of themare in English.

DR. WH TMAN. My second question is,
you're still working is ny understandi ng, but
IS -- the report here says that you were denied
I ssuance of your license in August of 2024.
Howis it you're still working?

MR, GRAVILLE: | can answer that. So, the
way the process works with the Board of
Adj ust nent, we give them due process. They
have an initial informal hearing in front of
the city admnistrator. |If they decide to
apply to the Board of Adjustnent, it's stays
t he revocation --

DR VWH TMAN. Got vyou.

MR GRAVILLE: ~-- until their due process
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in the hearing tonight. Stays the renewal. |

said revocation. It's not a revocation. It's
a nonrenewal .

DR. VWH TMAN:. | believe you asked her the
guestion of anybody could wal k past the roons
and see that nothing was going on, but |I'm
| ooking at pictures of the roons and they all
have | ocked doors. Howis it that they can be
nmoni tored then?

MR, GLICKFIELD: | believe that's a new
policy, but I'll ask the witness so she'll
understand. Wen did you renove the |ocks from
t he doors?

THE W TNESS: (Through interpreter) What
| ocks?

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: Were there ever | ocks on
the doors to the nassage roons?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) W
never have | ocks on those nmassage service room

MR. GLI CKFI ELD: And when did you
institute the rule that the door had to renain
alittle bit open at any tine?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) From
the very begi nni ng.

DR, VWH TMAN: Okay, thank you.
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CHAIR HPP: M. Hurt, please? Yes, sir?

MR HURT: 1'd like to understand your
timeline alittle better. She stated she cane
to St. Louis in 2019; is that correct?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Yeah.

MR. HURT: And she's been operating this
busi ness for five years; is that correct?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Yes,
that's correct.

MR, HURT: And she signed her nobst recent
| ease in 2024; is that correct?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Yes,
2024 April.

MR. HURT: So, how |l ong was her first
| ease for?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Five
years, that was back in 2019.

MR, HURT: kay. Was she operating the
ring business in 2020 all yearl ong?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) That
IS correct.

MR. HURT: She also stated that her
daught er has been in nmed school, she's in her
sixth year; is that correct?

(Court reporter clarification.)
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THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Yes.

MR, HURT: Okay. So, it leads up to the
one question | have is, in 2020, that was the
year that we are dealing with Covid 19 and
touchi ng and everything el se was not got going
on then and | thought that operations |ike were
not even operational. She was operating in
2020 even with Covid-19?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Ckay,
March 15, we close the shop. And then
June 1st, we reopened.

CHAIR H PP:. O what year please?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) 2020.

MR. HURT: She was allowed to reopen in
June? Wat nonth agai n?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) 2020,
June 1st, | think. Yeah. Ckay. Yes.

MR, HURT: kay, well, that's hard for ne
to understand. | run a manufacturing
operation, and ny understandi ng that those --
those tenures run longer, but | nmay be w ong.
| just wanted to understand because she's
expressing a hardship, so | was always curious
how you woul d run a business during that tine

when everybody was going through that hardshi p.
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Was she getting any kind of financial relief at

that tinme?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) So,
we' re tal king about the period of tinme March 15
to June 6, am| correct?

M5. HEBERLE: | don't know, |'m asking
you.

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) |
al ways work since | got into United States. |
al ways work for sonething, and then | save
money. | have noney saved on the side for
emer gency use.

MR, HURT: How many enpl oyees did she have
in 20207

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) One,
j ust one.

MR. HURT: So, you're operation in 2020
wi th one enpl oyee, no financial hardship, and,
now, you're dealing wth that now?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Ckay,
coul d you repeat your question?

MR. HURT: You're operating in 2020 with
one enpl oyee, apparently, able to sustain
yourself financially with no hardship at that

time, at |least of sone |level, and you're
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dealing with that now sane | evel, correct?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Ckay,
back in Covid, because of the business sl owed
down, so we had only one enpl oyee and then
gradually after Covid, and gradually the
business is getting a little bit better until
now because of the econony is not good, so it
went down again to only having one enpl oyee.

MR, HURT: Okay. That is all the
gquestions | had. | just wanted to understand
how she got through that tinme, and how she's
dealing with it now.

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Yeah,
back then, | do use a |l ot of my savings.

CHAIR HPP: Al right, thank you.

MR. GLI CKFI ELD: | don't know how we
I ntroduce this, but as a point of fact, and |
can send you the article, these places were
al l owed to be opened during Covid just like a
bar bershop was. They had certain requirenents,
but there was no restriction on them
technically ever at all. Because it appears to
be she's testifying then for a period of tine
she voluntarily closed, but, you know, just

i ke you were to able get your hair cut after a
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coupl e of weeks, et cetera; and |I'mreading

this fromfox2now.com "St. Louis area personal
servi ces business protocols for reopening."

So, it appears to be that she -- there wll be
no be | egal issue for her reopening and so she
di d.

CHAIR HPP: I'mgoing -- can | -- like in
the interest of 8:15, and we have nore
information, | want to have the prosecuting
attorney, M. Kloos, present his evidence.

MR, GRAVILLE: O he's got aright to
Cross --

CHAIR HI PP: You've got a right to
Cross --

MR GRAVILLE: |If he's got any questions.

CHAIR H PP: Well, apart from Cross, here
we go, we're in the crimnal area but we're
not; we're quasi-judicial, so, yes; but we wll
come back to any other questions because the
Board has a few nore but 1'd Iike M. Kloos
to --

MR, KLOOS: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Should I take that m crophone; is that
necessary?

(O f-the-record discussion.)
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR KLOCS:

Q Good evening, Ms. Cao.

A (Through the Interpreter) Good evening.

Q So, back when the police canme to Sunny's
Spa in May -- on May 9th of 2024, did you have two
enpl oyees Lisa and Sasha?

A That is correct.

Q Were those your only two enpl oyees?

A That is correct.

Q And we know they were arrested on that
date for prostitution?

A Yeah, | know by that date, May 9th. |
| earned by that date, May 9.

Q Ckay. That they were arrested for
prostitution?

A | don't know why they got arrest (sic).
The police told ne. | didn't know that they did
sonething or prostitution. The police told ne.

Q Ckay. So, you were nmade aware by the
police that your only two enpl oyees were arrested
for prostitution?

A Yes, that is correct.

Q And - -

MR, GLICKFIELD: 1'mgoing to object to
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form |I'msorry, because | think you have to
ask her separately. Like, when did you find

out this one, when did you find out that one.
| think that's we --

MR KLOOS: [|I'msure that's why we're
confused. | don't even understand your
obj ection but that's up to them

MR GICKFIELD: I1t's a conpound
guestion --

CHAIR HHPP. Can | --

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: -- asking nultiple things
I n one question.

CHAIR H PP: Hold on.

MR, GRAVILLE: Well, hold on, first off,
it was already answered, so the objection is
| at e.

CHAIR H PP: Right, but we want to hear
what's relevant to the investigation that you
conducted, which is relevant to how she
conducted her business. Covid is kind of a
side issue, in ny opinion, because it's not
really relevant to the business operations that
wer e being conducted in May 2024. As | see it,
| could be wong. | nean, the formof the

guestion is very inportant, but we are a
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guasi -j udi cial board, so we want a question

asked in any format that is |ogical and

reasonabl e and unconplicated. Please continue.

So ask -- M. Kloos, ask your guestion again,
she will answer it.

MR GRAVILLE: | think it's -- can we just
nove on?

MR, KLOOS: W're going to nove on. |
t hi nk she answer ed.

THE | NTERPRETER: But | have to transl ate
what she just said.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay, go ahead.

THE | NTERPRETER: But | have to tell you
that it really -- | learned fromthe police.
Police told ne they have -- they're doing the
prostitution.

Q (By M. Kloos) Thank you. So, at that
time, you testified earlier that no one was |iving
at the spa, correct?

A Never. Never had anybody live in there.

Q In fact, both Lisa and Sasha lived with

you at that time with you, did they not?

A That is correct.

Q Did you all three share an apartnment?

A That is correct.
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Q And they paid you, right?

A Yeah, they paid ne.

Q And their only job was working for you at
Sunny's Spa?
Correct, that is correct.

Did you drive together to work?

> O >

Sasha has his -- Sasha has her own car.

Q Ckay. Yet, you didn't know they were
perform ng sex acts for noney at your spa, even
t hough you worked all day together and then |ived
t oget her ?

A Well, we don't really talk to each other
because once we got hone, we have our own room W
just take shower and then went to bed.

Q Ckay. You testified earlier about, we'll
call it renedial neasures that you have taken since
the police cane to Sunny's Spa to prevent your
enpl oyees from perform ng sex acts for noney at your

spa; is that correct?

A Yes, that is correct.

Q You put up signs, correct?

A Prior to that.

Q Ckay.

A Sign was prior to that.

Q Ckay. Have them sign codes of conduct
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that they won't do that, correct? |I|s that correct?

THE | NTERPRETER: Pl ease, interpreter need

a clarification.

Q (By M. Kloos) Have -- have your enpl oyees
signed sonething that they say they won't engage in
t hat ?

A That is correct, yes.

Q And you owned Sunny's Spa by yourself,

correct?

A That is correct.

Q You're the boss?

A That is correct.

Q You make the rul es?

A That is correct.

Q You set the prices?

A Yes, | decide prices, but it's according
to the -- the market price.

Q You hire and fire enpl oyees?

A That is correct.

Q You advertise for the conpany?

A Only on Googl e, adverti se.

Q Advertise on Google? GCkay. |Is one of the

phone nunbers for Sunny's Spa: (314)628-1688?
A That is correct.

Ckay. Do you run an escort service out of
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Sunny's Spa?

Only in the shop (sic).

"' msorry?

Only in the shop (sic). No. No escor

Only massage, no escort service?

> O >» O >

No escort.

Q Ckay. Then can you tell the Board why
Sunny's Spa advertises on five different escort
sites?

MR, GL.I CKFI ELD:  bjection, facts not
the record.

(Multiple voices.)

a mnute, stop here. Do you -- could you
pl ease give us sone -- we want --

MR, GRAVILLE: | nean, it's -- the
gquestion is facts not in record, and he ask
guestion. You would argue facts not in rec
i f you were neking a closing argunent, and
were not in the record, so.

CHAIR H PP: Do you have any evi dence
support your question about five different
escort services?

MR, KLOOS: | do, Madam Chair. | was

going to put that in through ny wtness. |

CHAI R HI PP; Hold on, wait a mnute, wait
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just figured |I would --

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. W'IlIl allow the

guestion then. Please answer the question.

A (Through the interpreter) | didn't do any
ot her five pl aces.

Q (By M. Kloos) So, you don't advertise on
Skip the Ganes? A website called Skip the Ganes
Escort Service?

A Skip --

Q The Ganes?

A The Ganes. There are busi nessnen doi ng
advertising for us through Google. | need to
clarify the -- a friend introduced a guy that doing

advertising for ne, for us, for ne.

Q Ckay. So, you have a friend or an
enpl oyee that does the advertising for you?

A My friend introduce a guy doing the
advertising business. He introduce -- or she
I ntroduced the person to ny shop and hel p ne doi ng
t he adverti sing.

Q Ckay. So, you hired soneone to do the
advertising for you?

A That is correct, but all | knowis nostly
are from Googl e.

Q Ckay.
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CHAIR HPP: My | ask -- I"'msorry to
interrupt you. Have you reviewed these

particul ar websites that your friend or

enpl oyer --

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) No,

never .

Q (By M. Kloos) Ckay. How about
cal l escort.org?

A How do you spell that, please?

Q Ca-l-l-e-s-c-o0-r-t.org?

A |"mnot famliar, no.

Q How about bodyrubs. con?

A | don't know. I'mnot famliar wth that.
| don't think we have that.

Q How about adul t| ook. conf

Adul t Look?

Q Adul t | ook. conf?

A | don't know. |I'mnot famliar. | never
heard about it.

Q So, it would surprise you to find Sunny's
Spa' s phone nunber and advertisenents on escort
websi t es?

A " mvery shocked to know that those
websi tes have our advertisenent. | don't know why
our shop nane on there on those websites.
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Q Ckay. But we established that you're the

boss and you control the entire conpany, right?

A According to -- to the person fromthe
advertising conpany that he says we only have
advertising -- they only advertise -- do the
advertising on Google. That's all | know.

Q Ckay. So, you testified earlier you fired
Lisa on May 9, 2024, after the police arrested her,
correct?

A That is correct.

Q Ckay. And that is also the sane day that
Sasha was arrested, correct?

A | didn't know they got arrest (sic) or
what. Police told ne and then took nme to the pl ace
to have Sasha -- to pick up Sasha and Li sa.

Q But the police told you that Sasha and
Li sa were touchi ng people inappropriately?

A No, they didn't. But they came in just
| ooki ng for Lisa.

Q kay. Yet, Sasha continued to work there
unti|l August 26th of 2024?

A Yeah, August 26th, yes. Still in the
hearing, they told ne. Sasha had sane issue, so
that day | fired Sasha.

Q Ckay. Today you say you have one
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enpl oyee, correct? Wendy?

A That is correct.

Q And you testified she's 58 years ol d?

A 58 year old. Yeah, that is correct.

Q You don't have a 24-year-old wonan wor ki ng
for you?

A Never .

Q Never? kay. | have no further
guesti ons.

CHAIR HI PP: Just a question based on your
guestions. Are those platforns which you --
which sonme -- I'mnot -- |'mconfused about the
platforns. You said five adult websites or
platforns for escort services. Are those still
functional websites with her phone nunber
attached to thenf? Sunny's Spa phone nunber
attached to four -- five functional websites?

MR. KLOOS: That's correct, ma' am

CHAIR HPP: They're still active
websi tes?

MR GLI CKFI ELD: This was the basis of ny
obj ection. These are nessage boards anyone can
post anything --

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. Hold on. The court

reporter is going to have trouble with us.
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Basi s of your objection, go ahead.

MR, G.I CKFI ELD: That these are nessage
boards. Anyone can post anything they want.
So, this is extrenely -- | don't understand
how, w thout exam ning what these are, we can
deal with an inplication that she's been
advertising on a website, when, to ny
know edge, now, |'m not an expert in these
t hi ngs, these are nessage boards where anyone
who wants can make an account and post what ever
they want because it's already an X-rated
website, so there's no limts on what you can
say.

CHAIR HI PP:  Ckay.

MR, KLOOS: Madam Chair, | think | can
maybe cl ear up sone confusion --

CHAIR HPP: darify that? Ckay.

MR, KLOOS: That it's -- they're not
nmessage boards. They are websites. | wll
have the detective cone up in ny case and
testify to these, where he found them how he
found them and he can authenticate, and then |
wll offer themto the Board --

CHAIR H PP:  Ckay.

MR, KLOOS: -- as exhibits.
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CHAIR HPP: | thank you for that. M. --

yes, sir. AmIl saying it -- is it Gickline?
MR GLICKFI ELD: dickfield.
CHAIR HHPP: dickfield.
MR GLICKFIELD: It's all right. 1I1t's all
right. No worries.
CHAIR HPP: M. dickfield --
MR GRAVILLE: It's already been a couple
hour s.
MR G.I CKFI ELD:  Yeah.
CHAIR H PP: Wuld you -- would you |ike
to ask questions of her? O your client?
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR (Gl CKFI ELD:

Q On May 9th -- on May 9th, 2024, did the
police tell you that they had arrested Lisa?

A He canme in, asked for Lisa for four tines.

Q Did they tell you on May 9th, 2024, that
Sasha m ght have done anyt hi ng wong?

A No. Sasha didn't work, didn't really work
on that day. Not working on that day. She just sat
in front.

Q Ckay. On what day -- do you recall what
day you were first inforned that Sasha m ght have

done sonet hi ng wong?
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A August 26t h.

Q Ckay. You didn't wtness the arrests, did
you?

A No. No, | didn't.

Q Did you fully understand what the police
were telling you and what was goi ng on on May 9t h,
20247

A Not quite.

Q Have you ever posted an ad for your spa on
a sexual website?

A No.

Q Did you ever ask anyone to post an ad for
your spa on a sexual website?

A No.

Q | f you could take the information from
your spa down fromany and all sexual websites,
woul d you do so?

A Not -- no.

Ckay. | think I have no further questions
t here.
MR, KLOOS: No Recross, Madam Chair.
CHAIR H PP: Do we have questions?
DR WH TMAN:. | have sone questi ons.
You're having a | ot of trouble comrunicating

with us tonight and we have a translator. How
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do you communi cate with your clients in your
busi ness?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) For
sinple English, | understand. Like they're
goi ng here, what tine they nake a reservation
or if they are a couples of they're just
friends. | understand sinple English.

DR. VWH TMAN:  You have your enpl oyees sign
a code of conduct and the one that we've seen,
you explicitly say they are not to perform any
sexual acts. Do you have your clients sign a
code of conduct that they cannot request sexual
acts?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) To the
client, we only have a post on each roomt hat
i ndicate that we don't provide any sexual
activities. W're only have a nassage, a pure
massage. That's it in each roomfor client.

DR. VWH TMAN: But they don't have to sign
anything that they will not request such?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) No,
custoner -- the client don't need to sign. No,
we didn't ask themto sign. Only the poster on
the wall that say we have just a massage, and

then any other than the request, we can refuse
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to provide.

DR WH I TMAN: | noticed that you are
opened from9:30 a.m to 9:30 p.m six days a
week, and do two of you work all those hours
every day?

THE | NTERPRETER: Who work the hour? [|I'm
sorry?

DR. WHI TMAN: Do both of themwork from
9:30 to 9:30 everyday?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Not
necessary everybody work from9:30 -- 9:30 a.m
to 9:30 p.m, sonetines we only work, l|ike, for
two massage, then that's one day, sonetines.
Sonetines it varies. Sonmetines two custoners,
two clients, maybe sonetines three clients.

DR WH TMAN: So, what do you do the rest
of those hours?

THE WTNESS: (Through interpreter) Ckay,
nost of the tinme, we don't have anything to do,
we probably on the phone or take a break and
then if this is not good enough or not busy,
we'll close at 8:00.

DR. VWH TMAN: Okay, thank you.

CHAIR H PP: Any questions? GCkay. Sir,

we'll let -- did you have -- I'Il let you sit
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for a nonent and rest. Thank you. W'IlIl bring

you up. M. Kloos, did you have one --

MR, GRAVILLE: You have any nore w tnesses
M. -- or any nore evidence?

MR. GLI CKFI ELD: | have no nore w tnesses
and no nore evidence.

MR, GRAVILLE: Ckay, so you rest?

MR GLI CKFI ELD: | rest.

MR GRAVILLE: Ckay.

CHAIR H PP: M. Kloos, thank you.

MR, KLOOS: Thank you. The Gty calls
Detective John Halliday fromthe St. Louis
County Police Departnent.

(Detective John Halliday sworn.)

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

QUESTI ONS BY MR KLOOCS:

Q Detective, can you state your nane and
spell your last nanme for the record, please?

A My nanme is John Halliday, that's
Ha-l-I-i-d-a-y.

Q And what is your occupation, sir?

A |'"'ma St. Louis County police officer or a
det ecti ve.

Q And how | ong have you been enpl oyed as a

police officer?
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A |"ve been a police officer for 22 years.

Q What's your current assignnent?

A Mai n detective in the Speci al
| nvestigation Unit, human trafficking task force.

Q And how | ong have you been in that
assi gnnent ?

A Over 11 years.

Q What was your assignnent on or about
February 9th of 2024?

A W were notified by Judge --

Q " msorry, what your assignnment?

A Ch, ny assignnent was speci al
I nvesti gati ons.

Q Ckay. And to this date, you're still
assigned to special investigations, correct?

A Correct, yes.

Q Okay. Wiat is the Special Investigations
Unit function?

A Typically, | guess, it's better known as
or nore people know it as the Vice Unit. W
i nvestigate human trafficking, half the unit
i nvestigates | CAC, Internet Crines against Children,
chil d pornography, enticenent. W also do other
i nvestigations: nurder for hires, pawnshops,

ganbling, just the ganbit.
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Q Prostitution?

A Correct, prostitution, human trafficking,
prostitution.

Q Ckay. As part of the Special Task Force
Unit, do you receive any special training concerning
prostitution and sex trafficking?

A Yes, |'ve been to several trainings out in
Las Vegas, Charlie Fuller training, Human
Trafficking Device. The International Association
of Human Trafficking Investigations or
I nvestigators. W have several conferences and
trainings. |'ve been doing many years of that.

Q Ckay. Fair to say you' re one of the nost
seni or detectives in the Vice Unit?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Is it common to assi st nunicipal
police departnents with human trafficking
I nvestigations?

A Yes.

Q Are you the only unit of your kind in St.
Louis County that's specializes in this?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. What are sone of the signs of human

trafficking or sex trafficking?

A Are you tal king about, |ike, |ocations or,
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i ke, i1ndividual s?

Q Let's kind of get to a nore gernmane point.
Let's tal k about sex trafficking as in regards to
busi nesses.

A Ckay. Sex trafficking in businesses, in
this case, this instance, it wll include -- you'll
peopl e have that are brought, extrenely vul nerabl e,
one of the human trafficking, that victins are
extrenely vul nerable and the traffickers recognize
this. Kind of this situation, you'll people have
fromforeign countries, don't know where they are.
Don't know their actual |ocation. Have a | anguage
barrier. They don't understand the econom c system
the cultural system so there's difficult -- they
are at a disadvantage. And the traffickers wll
t ake advantage of that and put themin certain
situations.

Q Ckay. And are there sonetinmes businesses,
i ke, massage parlors used as fronts to use sexual
acts and people for sex acts?

A Yes.

Q Typically, do they live with their
enpl oyer ?

A Typically, yes, and there are sone

I nstances where they will reside at the massage
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parl or.

Q And there was sone tal k about that
earlier. There was no evidence of people |living at
t he massage parlor, correct?

A No.

Q In fact, there was evidence that M Cao
and her two enpl oyees, Lisa and Sasha, just |ived
with her in an apartnent?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. On or about February 9th, 2024,
were you and your nenbers -- you and nenbers of your
unit contacted by the Chesterfield Police Departnent
concerning the possibility of sex trafficking
occurring at Sunny's Spa?

A Yeah, there were -- we were contacted by a
Detective Chris Miunch, Chesterfield Police
Departnment, stated they received several anonynous
reports of elicit behavior going on at the massage
parl or.

Q And he had said he had gotten sone
conpl ai nts about that over the |ast couple of years?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. |s Sunny's Spa |l ocated at 13714,
Unit A dive Boul evard?

A Yes.
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Q And is that the Cty of Chesterfield?

A Yes.

Q At what point did you and the nenbers of
your unit initiate an investigation regarding
Sunny's Spa?

A Al nost immedi ately. On that sanme day, we
contacted M. Minch and di scussed what's goi ng on
and that evening we started surveillance on the
massage parl or.

Q And surveillance, just set up covertly,
wat ches who's com ng and going fromthe spa?

A Exactly.

Q Ckay. Did you conduct only surveillance
February 9th or did you conduct additi onal
surveil | ance?

A Just surveillance on February 9th.

Q Ckay. Did your unit return on
February 5th and February 22nd to conduct additi onal
surveill ance?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. After conducting your surveillance,
did -- were you able to ascertain a phone nunber for
Sunny's Spa?

A Yes, the (314)628-1618 tel ephone nunber.

(kay. And did you get that from Skip the
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Ganes, a website?

A Actually, it's on the front of the w ndow
of the nmassage parlor but we do use --

Q kay. And after getting that phone
nunber, the 1688 phone nunber, did you call and nake
an appoi nt nent ?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. D d you --

A We did see an advertisenent on Skip the

Ganes. W did investigate the nunber and we did

find -- yes.
Q Ckay.
A Back to your earlier question, yes, sorry.

Q Ckay, so what's Skip the Ganes?

A Skip the Ganes is a website, |I'msure you
all renmenber Backpage. Backpage was taken down
because it was functioning out of the United States.
Skip the Ganes is an escort website where you have
to be a nenber, you have to sign up and log in and
post advertisenents. And, typically, it's an escort
website. You know, the escorts or nmassage parlors,
brot hel s, whatever, they all advertise on this
websi te.

Q Ckay. And through your 11 years in this

unit working prostitution and sex trafficking, have
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you ever had any instances where prostitution or sex

trafficking has been advertised through Skip the
Ganes?

A Many, yes.

Q Ckay. So, did you eventually nmake an
appoi ntnent after calling for a massage?

A Yes.

Q And did you attend that appoi ntnent?

A Yes.

Q And do you renenber how nuch you paid for
how | ong a massage?

A Forty dollars for half an hour.

Q kay. Who did you see when you got there?

Do you renenber what the person told you their nane

was ?

A | believe it was Lisa.

Q kay. And did you ultimately get a
massage?

A Yes.

Q Can you please tell the Board details
about that nassage.

A It's a -- | nmet wwth Lisa. She agreed to
meet. We went to the room nunber 3, | believe it

was. And she, you know, had ne enter the room |

di srobed. She -- after | was conpleted, she
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knocked. | was already lying on the table and |
uncovered nyself. | was |laying on ny stomach. |
uncovered by nmy buttock with a towel. She cane in

and started a massage, having had -- nyself having

had massages at other |ocations that were
prof essi onal massages, the nassage | was receiving
had very, if no, therapeutic val ue, whatsoever.
After a certain point and tinme, she

renoved the towel fromny buttocks and started
massagi ng ny buttocks, which is not uncommon on a
pr of essi onal massage. But there was sone situations
where she got extrenely close to ny anus and ny
geni tals.

Q And did you ask her to do that?

A No.

Q Ckay. As the massage continued, did she,
agai n, nove cl oser and touch your genitalia?

A After approximately between 10 and 15
mnutes, | switched -- | rolled over to ny back.
She actually left the room got a hot towel, cane
back, wiped the oils all of ny back and | egs, and
then returned. After she left again, |I flipped over
to ny back and covered ny m dsection with the towel.
She returned and started massaging ny |legs. And, at

one point, she touched ny genitals and ended up
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touching -- grabbing ny penis, at which tine, |
I mredi ately stopped it.

Q Ckay. Did you ever ask her to do that?

A No.

Q Ckay. Did you ever guide her hand or
sonehow gesture that you wanted her to do that?

A No. | actually -- when she touched the
first tinme, | said, no, up here; and she teased ne a

little bit nore and | finally waived ny finger and
sai d, no, stop.

Q Ckay. And did you ultimately | eave?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And took no further action that
day?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. At sone point, did you and nenbers
of your unit return back to Sunny's Spa on
April 25th?

A Correct.

Q kay. And did nenbers of your unit send
anot her detective in there to get a nmassage?

A Yes, a second detective went in to get a
massage.

Q And what was his nane?

A Det ective Jerry Cochran (ph.).
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Q Ckay. And were you the | ead detective in

this investigation?

A Yes.

Q So, as |ead detective, did you act as a
quart erback, kind of coordinated and everybody
responded to you what happened in their parts of the
I nvestigation?

A Correct, yes. W still have a sergeant,
who is the overall supervisor, but I'min charge of
the investigation.

Q Your case, right?

A Correct.

Q You wote the report?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Did Detective Cochran then get a
massage?

A Yes, he did.

Q Was that froma |ady --

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: (nj ection, based on

hear say.

CHAIR HPP: W'Il allowthat. Go ahead.

Q (By M. Kloos) And was that froma wonman
i dentifying herself at Sasha?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Wiat, if anything, did you learn in
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your | nvest | gatl on regar di ng Det ecti ve Cochran's

massage?
A The sane thing that happened at ny massage
happened during his massage as wel|.
Q kay. And as in, found his scrotum and
t ouched his penis?
A Correct.
Q So, now, we have two instances, and if
you' re aware, did Detective Cochran ask for any of
t hat ?
A He did not.
MR, GLI CKFI ELD: Sane obj ection, objection
based on hearsay.
CHAIR HI PP: Thank you, noted. Pl ease
conti nue.
Q (By M. Kloos) Okay. D d he gesture for
Sasha to do any of this?
A No.
Q Did he tell her to stop in fact?
A Yes, he did.
Q Ckay. Based on these two instances, did

detectives fromyour unit conduct nore surveill ance

on the -- on the massage parlor?
A Yes.
Q Ckay.
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A After the 25th, we stayed -- or we stayed

in the area. And then at closing tine, we followed
the -- actually one of the enpl oyees left early, and
we followed the remai ning two enpl oyees back to
their apartnent on Steanboat.

Q Ckay. Through your investigation, were
you able to determ ne that both Ms. Cao, Sasha and
Lisa all resided on the sane apartnent on Steanboat
Lane in Bal dwi n?

A Correct, yes.

Q Okay. And the -- when you followed the
car, the Honda, that you testified to, were you able
to determne the regi stered owner of that car?

A Yes.

Q Was that Ms. Cao?

A Yes, it was.

Q Ckay. Direct your attention to May 9,
2024, what, if anything, did your unit do to further
your investigation?

A At that tinme, having in both instances on
the 12th and the 25th, we conducted a search warrant
on the premses in an attenpt to acquire nore
evidence to see if there's a human trafficking being
conducted at the massage parl or.

Q Ckay. |If you renenber, what enpl oyees
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were on-site at Sunny's Spa when the search warrant

was execut ed?
A Al three. The owner and the two
enpl oyees were present.
Q So, Ms. Cao, Sasha and Lisa?
A Correct.
Q Ckay. Were you and detectives from your

unit able to interview all three of thenf

A W interviewed the two enpl oyees on
scene --

Q Ckay.

A -- using an FBI interpreter, and then we

| ater interviewed the owner back at the
headquarters.

Q And was -- you said an FBlI interpreter?

A Yes, an FBlI interpreter was utilized.

Q Ckay. And the FBI acconpani es you guys
because you are investigating possible sex
trafficking?

A Correct. W're task force officers with
t he FBI.

Q Ckay. Through that investigation, were
you able to determne that Ms. Cao was indeed the
boss and those were her only two enpl oyees?

A Correct, yes.
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Q (]<ay. Dur i ng your |1 nvest | gatl on, were you

able to determne if either Lisa or Sasha even had
masseuse |icenses?

A W determ ned that neither of them had a
massage |icense.

Q So, they weren't licensed or registered to
conduct massages in M ssouri?

A | believe Sasha said she had a |license --
one of the individuals said they had a |license out

of Houston, Texas.

Q Ckay.
A It's not good in Mssouri.
Q It's not good here in M ssouri?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. During your interviews of Ms. Cao,
did you ask her how she advertised for Sunny's Spa?

A Yes.

Q And what did she say?

A She said pretty nuch the sanme thing she
said today. That she had hired a friend or an
I ndi vidual to advertise for her. | asked her if she
| ooked at the nassage -- the advertisenents because
they are on escort websites, and she said she did
not. | asked her since she's the boss, the owner of

t he busi ness, wouldn't she want to make sure that
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the advertisenents are on -- on respectable

websites. She said she didn't know because she was

not the one actually placing the nassage.

Q Ckay.
A Part of the advertisenent, excuse ne.
Q The advertisenent, okay. So, we

established that it was (314)628-1688?

A Correct.

Q And that's the sane nunber that you and
Det ective Cochran called to make your appoi ntnents
for the nmassages?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And you just testified you did an
I nvestigation into that nunber and found it on
several websites, correct?

A Correct.

Q Escort websites? How recently have you
checked that phone nunber to see if it's on escort
websi tes?

A | did it yesterday and today.

Q Ckay. And is that nunber on Sunny's Spa
still advertised on adult escort websites?

A Yes.

Ckay. And were you able to determ ne that

t here was anot her phone nunber associated with
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Sunny's Spa? It was a (314)610-6521?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Did you do any investigation with
regard to that phone nunber?

A We did, actually, a sinple Google search,
and it did come back to adult websites or escort
websites, | should say.

Q So, when you say "(Googl e search” so the
Board understands, you just Googl ed that phone
nunber ?

A Yes.

Q And what did it |ead you to?

A It gave a listing of several escort
websi tes.

Q Ckay. So, let ne ask you about that:
you' re Googling just the phone nunber to the
busi ness and the first thing that pops up are
escorts websites?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So, for lack of better term
| egiti mate nmassage parlors, like, we'll just use
MassagelLuxe, for instance. Have you Googl ed

MassagelLuxe's phone nunber?

A Yes.

Q What cones up? Escort websites?
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A No. Typically, it will be Yelp or the

actual advertisenent of the website for the massage

parlor, itself. Yeah, but no -- no adult escort
websi tes.
Q So, thisisn't -- this is sonething you

have to advertise on through your experience? This
isn't sonething that bots are putting on escorts --

A Correct.

Q -- escort sites?

A Correct. You have to be a nenber of Skip
the Ganes. You have to have a log in and password
to get in on that.

Q So, like, a paid subscription, log in,
password to advertise on their site?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Were sone of these websites, |
guess, we sai d skiptheganes.com was that one --

A Yes.

Q -- that you found? How about

onebackpage. conf?

A Yes.
Q Rubmaps. conf
A Correct.
Q Uscal l girl s. conf?
CHAIR H PP: | think your m crophone --
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THE W TNESS: Yeah, the m crophones are
of f.
MR, GRAVILLE: They're out of battery.

(O f-the-record discussion.)

with a website call ed usasexgui de. conf?

A Yes.

Q VWhat is it?

A That is a forum where people fromthis
city, any cities, can tal k about nassage parl ors,
escorts, streetwal kers, typically anything. Strip
clubs and it's just -- like I said, it's a forum
They tal k about where they're going. Wo they've
seen, their rate. It's just a conversation about
escorts and whatever you want to tal k about.

Q Ckay. Did you, as part of your

Sunny's Spa was part of that?

A Correct.

Q kay. And what, if any, information did
you find posted about Sunny's Spa on sexgui de. conf?

A Actually, | believe, the date is
February 20th, it could be 21st of this year, yes,

Page 130

Q (By M. Kloos) Detective, are you famliar

I nvestigation, go to usasexguide.comto determne if

this year. | located a forum comment that sonebody

said they were going to the nmassage parlor, and they
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encountered an enpl oyee naned Sunny that was well
worth their visit.
Q Ckay. And that was three weeks ago?
A Correct.
Q Ckay. Now, this is a forumyou have no
idea -- no way to verify, to be fair, who that was?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. But soneone did post that they --
on usasexgui de.comthat they just visited three
weeks ago, and it was well worth their trip?

A No. The post was three weeks ago. Wat
tinmeframe, they had visited, it's unknown.

Q Okay. Did you find other forunms where
Sunny's Spa was a place that perforned sex acts, or
at | east people were claimng that it was? |
bel i eve happy endings, is what it was terned?

A Happy endi ngs, yes.

Q Ckay. Can you pl ease expl ain what that
means to the Board?

A Happy endi ngs, essentially, is to a point
where the custoner ejacul ates, clinaxes.

Q Ckay. |Is that typically at the tail end
of a massage?

A Correct, hence the nanme happy endi ng.

Q Ckay. And, just to be clear, you' ve
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| ooked -- the bulk of this investigation was several

nmont hs ago, but you' ve | ooked into these foruns and
they're still updated nore recently even as of this
week and | ast week?

A Correct.

Q kay. And, to be clear, the investigation

is still ongoing?

A Correct. W still have evidence that is
bei ng | ooked at and so the evidence -- the
i nvestigation is still open, ongoing.

Q Ckay. And, after the search warrant, did
menbers of your unit arrest Lisa and Sasha for
prostitution?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Based on the totality of your
I nvestigation, obviously, did you find there were
signs of prostitution?

A Yes.

Q Money changed hands between undercover
det ecti ves?

A Yes. A sex act was committed in the

exchange of sonething of value, which in this case

was noney.
Q Ckay.
MR GLICKFIELD: Well, | object to Exhibit
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MR. KLOOS: | haven't even offered it.
Just | ook through the exhibits, please.

CHAIR HHPP: Wuld it be perm ssible,
while M. dickfield -- M. dickfield, pardon
me, sir, M. dickfield is observing the
evi dence there, why don't we take a five-mnute
recover break, if that would be okay. The City
Is going to go off the record for a m nute.

So, we're going to recess at 9:07 and cone back
at 9:15.
(Wherein, a short recess was taken.)

CHAIR HPP: Al right, are we back on the
record, sir? GCkay. M. Qickfield, are we
prepared to proceed? You had a chance to
revi ew t he docunents?

MR G.I CKFI ELD: | have, yes.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay, thank you. Have we
| abel ed t henf?

MR. GLI CKFI ELD:  They are | abel ed.

CHAIR HI PP: They are | abel ed, okay, all
right.

MR, GRAVILLE: Before we take -- do you
want do an objection, M. Qickfield or --

MR G.I CKFI ELD:  Yeah, just to go back to

Page 133
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t hem because sone of them actually are just
porn collages. So, if you didn't m nd
giving --
THE WTNESS: | w Il explain.
MR, KLOOS: | would Iike a chance to try
to introduce themthrough the witness --
CHAIR HI PP:  Ckay.
MR KLOOS: -- before offering them as
evi dence.
CHAIR H PP: Ckay, that's very doabl e,
yes.
MR, KLOOS: Ckay.
CHAIR HI PP: Pl ease proceed.
Q (By M. Kloos) Ckay, thank you. Kind of
awkward, 1'll stand up here so we can get the
m crophone or do you need ne on m crophone? Ckay,
you can hear nme? Detective, you can stand ri ght
there. Detective, I'mgoing to hand you what's been
previously marked as City's Exhibits A B, C, D and
E.
(CGty's Exhibit A B, C, D and E nmarked.)
Q (By M. Kloos) Can you | ook at Exhibit A,
and tell the Board what that is?
A Exhibit A this is the Skip the Ganes.
So, if go on the website and you go to Skip the
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Ganes and you enter in St. Louis, what's going to

show up is three photographs, imges, from each
adverti senent that young | adies or nmen are placing
on that website. You can scroll and click one of

t hose photographs. It will take you to that

i ndividual's website. So, this collage, as he was
saying, that is the first three are one individual;
the second three are of another advertisenent; so,
once you click on that advertisenent or one of those
phot ographs, it will take you to that specific

i ndi vidual's advertisenent. It wll give all of the
details where they are or what phone nunber to call
or what services they actually provide.

Q So, can you go to the second page of
Exhibit -- GCty's Exhibit A where it's flagged and
tell us what's highlighted there, sir?

A It's on the third page, and there are
t hree photographs. Third row down, the first
phot ogr aphs are i mages, have a young Asian fenal e
with the tel ephone nunber (314)628-1688 across the
center of each one of them

Q And what's that the phone nunber to,

Det ective?

A That is the phone nunber to the -- Sunny's

Spa.
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Q Ckay. Wen did you search Skip the Ganes

for that and print that out?

A That was today.

Q Ckay. Going onto City's Exhibit B. What
Is that?

A This is callescort.org, simlar to the
website Skip the Ganes. Skip the Ganes, | m ght
add, is very popular. |It's one of two the nost
popul ar websites. Callescort, this one, actually,
iIs -- they're all essentially set up the sane. They
all either have a photograph and you just go down
the line and you click on whatever female or male
that you're attracted to and you try to find their
services. This is after you go online and you click
on to the photo -- one of the images, and it brings
out the information, and the, | guess the gist of
this advertisenent, the verbiage.

Q kay. On City's Exhibit B, are there
phone nunbers or addresses or nanme of a conpany
associated wth that?

A There is the phone nunber (314)628-1688 at
the beginning, and then it tal ks about the address,
13704, A, dive Boul evard, Chesterfield, Mssouri
63107. Just bel ow that, has the phone nunber,

again, and then just belowthat, it has 9:30 a.m to
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9:30 p.m seven days.

Q Ckay. City's Exhibit C, what's that?

A This is what you woul d get when you
actually click on one of the photographs. So, if |
went to page 389, clicked on the photograph or the
image wth the tel ephone nunber, it brings up the
entire advertisenent and all the photographs. There
are 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 photographs of young Asian
femal es. Each one has the tel ephone nunbers
(314) 628- 1688 across it. And then further down, it
tal ks about -- just the verbiage, "I see nen.
Accepting cash. Available for incall, outcall."
That's commercial sex industry verbi age.

Q What is that incall, outcall, can you
explain that to the Board?

A Incall, outcall, if we want an outcall,
that nmeans that the prostitute or the sex worker is
going to travel to the custoner, the John. An
incall 1s just the opposite. It is where the John,
the custoner, travels to the |ocation of wherever
the sex worker is |ocated.

Q Ckay. And, again, Detective, when did you
find that advertisenment?

A Today.

Q Ckay. And City's Exhibit D?
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okay. And how about E?

or images with, again, the tel ephone nunber
(314) 628-1688. The verbi age below that. Wth the
address, the tel ephone nunber and the date or the
hour s.

Q Ckay. Wen did you print out Gty's
Exhi bit E?

A This woul d be today as well.

Q kay. Did you alter those inages or put
any additions or deletions to those exhibits?

A No.

on the website except you printed thenf

Page 138
A D is another Skip the Ganes advertisenent.
Q Does it have the phone nunber associ ated
with Sunny's Spa on it?
A Yes, it does.
Q Does it advertise a 24-year-old fenal e?
A It advertises a very young Asian fenale.
| don't see the age on there but --
Q It mght -- it mght be the wong exhibit,

A E is Adul tLook, which again, is simlar to
Skip the Ganes. It's an escort website, and it has

a collage of, I'd say, a total of eight photographs

Q Ckay. Those are exactly as you found them

A They were printed, and they will cone out,
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once you print them they will conme out sonewhat

different than you would see it on the conputer
screen.

Q Just like you printed sonething off of STL
Today, it shows up differently?

A Yes, yes.

Q Ckay. But you did not edit or change the
content --

A Correct, no.

Q -- fromany of those exhibits from what
you saw on your conputer screen?

A You are correct. | did not.

Q Ckay. City is going to offer Cty's
Exhibits A, B, C, D and E into evidence?

CHAIR H PP: Al right.

MR G.ICKFI ELD: So, |I'mgoing to object
because, nost inportantly, the Gty has
prevented -- the Gty has presented no evidence
t hat anybody coul d have posted -- could not
have posted these. These are website or
websites that anybody can nake an account on.
They copy-paste whatever they want in; and it's
unfairly prejudicial to be assumng that this
was actually posted by ny client. [It's also

not factual to state that this couldn't have
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been done by bots. M client has only owned

this five years. These websites have existed
far longer than that. And the way that
advertisenment often works is they're automated
systens that continue to repost things. M
client, as you can see, doesn't really speak
English and is going to recogni ze none of this.

By even considering this evidence, there's
no evi dence that she posted these things. It's
sinply unfairly prejudicial. No evidence has
been presented that this is sonething that
Sunny's Spa actually did. And nuch of it is
j ust sal acious content, |ike shocking content.
And, additionally, by printing it off the
internet, that nmakes it hearsay. It doesn't
nmeet the best evidence rule. It's not properly
aut henticated. The testinony that, | didn't
alter it, is not adequate to make sure that it
wasn't altered, although I'm not saying |
question anyone's intregrity at all.

However, it does not neet evidentiary
standards. | nean, just to get into the --
there's no basis for admtting sonething |ike
that. Every objection one could possibly nake.

Additionally, it's irrelevant, because at the
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end -- because at the end of the day, sonebody

el se could be posting these things. Nothing
has been presented -- nothing had been
presented to thwart any of that, and just using
basic logic, if ny client had any idea that
this was going on, the nonent that she was
encountered by the police, you think she'd
stop. But | think that does it for all of ny
obj ecti ons.

CHAIR HI PP: Very good points. | will let
you respond to that objection before | --

MR KLOOS: Sure.

MR. GRAVILLE: Can | nmke one quick
poi nt - -

CHAIR H PP:  Yes.

MR, GRAVILLE: Real quick. W are a
gquasi -judicial body. This is not a jury. So,
it's the weight, right? | think your points --
a lot of yours go to the weight of the --

CHAIR H PP: How nmuch we should wei gh the
evi dence, | agree.

MR. GRAVILLE: -- the evidence. | didn't
hear that he offered it for the truth of the
matter with regards to what's in there, and |

don't think he ever -- there was any
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testinony -- | think the testinony was the

exact opposite that sonebody -- that Jie was
the one that posted. It wasn't offered. It
was related to the phone nunber, but go ahead.

CHAIR HHPP: No, | think those are all
good points, and | would like to hear your
response to his objections and then we'll --

MR, KLOOS: Well, there's a lot of
obj ections there. | guess I'll start with
relevance. | think that it's extrenely
rel evant based on -- his client testified that
they took a ton of renedial neasures to make
sure none of this activity was happeni ng at
t heir massage parl or.

As found in the conclusions of facts or in
testinmony in front of the City Adm nistrator,
police testified and she acknow edged, back on
May 9th, police told her that all of these
things were on the website. Now, we're ten
nmonths later, and they're still advertising on
escort websites. So, we've seen evidence of
remedi al neasures of signs and codes of
conduct, yet, we're still advertising on sex
sites. | think the relevance is what it is.

As far as her not posting it, |'m not
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offering it for that. |'mjust saying that

t hese advertisenents exist, and we al so have an
expert who's been doing this for eleven years,
going to these websites. They just told the
Board how you get on them They're paid
subscriptions. You have to have a log-in and a
pass code in order to advertise on these

t hi ngs.

He also testified that they go to these
sites specifically for this, to find out if
they're advertising to find evidence of sex
trafficking and prostitution. The detective
also testified that if he did this for
MassagelLuxe, you wouldn't find any of these
things. So, short of a conspiracy to frane
Sunny's Spa, | believe it's conpletely
rel evant.

MR, GLICKFIELD: | need to respond to
sonet hi ng, because | don't recall the detective
testifying that all of these websites require
you to pay nmake your account, so | just want
to -- can | ask the detective all these?

MR KLOCS: Well --

CHAIR HHPP: He did testify to that.

MR, KLOOS: And, yeah, he'll get a chance

Page 143
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to cross-exam ne himbut that was just ny
answer to his objection.

CHAIR HPP: | believe the question of
whet her or not you said you had to be a nenber
and you had to have a pass code --

MR, Gl CKFI ELD:  No, to pay, to pay.

CHAIR H PP: To nmake a conmment on these
websites. Isn't that correct, sir? That's
what you testified to --

THE WTNESS: Correct, you have to have a
| og-in and a password.

CHAIR HHPP:. A log in and a password.

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: Do you have to pay was ny
question? | don't recall hearing that
menber ship on these websites cost noney.

MR KLOOS: Well, strike that fromny
response so we can nove on. That's great.

CHAI R HI PP:  Ckay.

MR, KLOOS: Ckay, City offers A-E.

CHAIR HPP: 1'd like to ask himthat
guestion. Go ahead and ask the question over.

MR GRAVILLE: He's going to get a chance
to cross --

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: Do these -- do these

websites require nenbers to pay noney in order

Page 144
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to becone nenbers?

THE WTNESS: Sone of them do. Sone of
them do not.

MR. GLI CKFI ELD: Wi ch ones require you to
pay?

THE WTNESS: Of the top of ny head, |
cannot -- | do not know, unfortunately.

CHAIR HI PP: Ckay. Subject to all of your
comments, |I'mgoing to admt those pieces of
evidence, A through E, and we w |l weigh them
according to the -- howrelevant they are to
the -- to whether or not, Ms. Cao has reforned
her business practices to the degree that you
assert that she has, in fact, done so including
notice to her clients or things of that matter.

(Cty's Exhibits A, B, C D and E admtted onto the
hearing record.).

MR. GLI CKFI ELD: For the purposes of Cross

CHAIR HI PP: For that purpose, | believe
it's very relevant, yes, sir.

MR, G.I CKFI ELD:  For the purposes of
Cross-exam nation, can | hold thenf

CHAIR H PP: Absolutely, you may, sir.

Ckay. Now, having admtted those, we're
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going -- you want to continue to hold them and

we'll ook at themlater. Ckay, very good.

Q (By M. Kloos) One final question if |
may, Madam Chair? Detective, back on May 9th, when
your police departnent executed the search warrant
on Sunny's Spa, did you have an opportunity to
interview Ms. Cao?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. During that interview, did you
alert her to all of these advertisenents on these
escort and adult sites?

A Yes, | did.

Q Ckay. And, ten nonths later, they're
still on there?

A Correct.

Ckay. | have nothing further.

CHAIR HI PP: Thank you. Do you have
gquestions of this witness first before | --

MR GLI CKFI ELD: | do.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay, go ahead, sir.

MR, GLICKFI ELD: Firstly, can everyone
hear ne?

CHAIR HI PP:  Yes.

M5. AHNER. | have a mc if you need it.

CHAIR HPP: If you need it. W hear you
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clearly.

MR GLICKFIELD: 1'Il take the mc. |Is
this any | ouder?
CHAIR HI PP:  Perfect.
MR, GLICKFIELD: It definitely works.
Ckay.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR LI CKFI ELD:
Q Do you have any idea how | ong these
websi tes have existed for?
A No, | do not know.
Q So, to your know edge, in the year 2018,
di d ski pt heganes. eu exi st?
A That | can't positively say, whether or
not it did or not.
Q Ckay. What about callescort.org? Did
that exist in the year 20187
A That is --that one is rarely used, so |
coul dn't answer that question either.
Q And what about ski pt heganes.com did that

exist in the year 20187

A | can't answer.

Q And did Adul t Look exist in the year 2018?

A Never had -- | couldn't answer that.

Q So, since you understand the functionality
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of these, does skiptheganes.eu require, in order to

post, the individual posting to nake an account?

A Yes.

Q Does it require the individual making an
account to pay noney to have account?

A | do not know. There are tinmes when they
wi Il change. Sonetines you do pay; sonetines you
don't pay. So, right now, | don't know whether or
not you have to pay.

Q What about callescort.org? Do you have
pay to post on that?

A That | don't know. That's, like | said,
that website is rarely used.

Q And ski pt heganes. con?

A That's the sane at the first one.

Q Uh- huh. So, also, to your know edge, you
don't need to pay?

A | don't -- | can't say you don't need to
pay. | just don't know whether or not you have to
pay.

Q Ckay. So, if a person doesn't need to pay
and they can just post, then sonething could be

posted by anyone; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q So, do you understand how i nternet bots
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wor k?

A Yes.

Q So, is there any reason that a internet
bot coul d not keep posting ads over and over and
over on a nessage board-style website |like this?

A In theory, it could, yes.

Q Ckay. In the event that, let's say we're

tal ki ng about sonething like this. Let's say we're
tal ki ng about a nessage board that reviews hotdog
stands, and | set up a bot that says, they're
terrible hotdogs at sonebody's hotdog stand and it
keeps reposting year after year. Wuld the owner of
t hat hotdog stand be able to stop that?

A Typically, yes, they can contact that
website and have themtake that down.

Q Do you believe that contacting
ski pt heganes. eu woul d have that effect, that they
would -- if you contacted them they would say, oh,
for sure, we'll take these down.

A From ny experience with working with Skip
the Ganes, they're very cooperative with ne.
Whet her or not, they would be with a custoner, that
Is -- 1 can't answer that questi on.

Q Uh-huh. But if sone other entity or sone

other force is posting things, then an individual
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effected doesn't necessarily have a recourse agai nst

that; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And when websites are based in other
countries, specifically, you nentioned Backpages was

t aken down because it was based in the United

States --
A Yes, sir.
Q -- and these things are illegal in the

United States, correct?

A Correct.

Q So, these websites are not based in the
United States, am | correct --

A Correct.

Q -- in understanding that?

A Correct.

Q So, if they're not based in the United
St ates, what recourse would an individual business
owner have if ads were being placed about them and
the website just ignored thenf? What recourse --
what recourse would an Anerican have agai nst a
website -- against that website that's based in

anot her country posting fal se things about thenf

What -- what recourse?
A They woul dn't have any recourse.
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Q Ckay. Wen you went to -- when you went

to Sunny's Spa in February of 2024, do you recall

seeing Jie there?

A Yes.

Q Do you recall seeing her in February of
20247

A Ch, no. February, no. February, when we

first initiated the investigation?

Q Yeah.

A No, | did not see her.

Q Ckay.

A | didn't actually physically see Jie until
the surveillance when we followed April 25.

Q On April 25th?

A And, of course, on the day of the search
war r ant .

Q And, so, do we have any way of know ng who
posted these ads in Exhibits A through E?

A No.

Q kay. And we have no -- we have no
speci fic knowl edge whether it cost noneys to
post these things, correct?

A Correct. Getting back to your previous
question, at this tine, | could not tell you who

posted that; but we could issue a search warrant to
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Skip the Ganes and see who posted those.
Q Ckay.
A That is one of the procedures that is
being -- still being investigated, since it's an

ongoi

ng i nvestigation.
Q Ckay.

CHAIR HHPP. M. dickfield, if you
bel i eve that these postings are critical, |
mean, we'll give it the weight it's due in
det erm ni ng whet her we believe that the
CGty's -- that M. Geisel's findings should be
overturned but, if you' d |like to table this to
another tinme and give our detective an
opportunity to look into that wwth a search
capacity -- search warrant capacity, we can do
that for us, if you find that woul d be hel pful
to, | guess --

MR. GRAVILLE: | would -- | would
definitely caution that | don't want to in any
way intertwine this with any type of crim nal
I nvestigation.

CHAIR H PP: Okay. Subject to that, |
just make that offer. | nean, it's now 9: 35.
W want to give Ms. Cao, you know, the very

I nportant attention that her case deserves

888-893-3767
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and - -

MR G.I CKFI ELD: Ri ght.

CHAIR HHPP: And we don't want to end up
maki ng any hasty judgnents with what you --
wi th what appears to be, maybe we don't have
all the facts, in whether or not she's been
posting or been sonehow managi ng the posting of
I nappropriate materials on these five different
platforns. Wether she's a paid subscriber or
an agent is a paid subscriber or how these cane
to be about; and whether -- and | think it goes
to the heart of what we're | ooking at, whether
or not she has refornmed her business practices
to be conducting business in a proper way here
in Chesterfield, which why is we're here today.
To see whet her or not her business |icense
shoul d be deni ed, continued to be denied or
shoul d be overturned to allow her to have a
busi ness | i cense.

| f you feel it's critical, maybe we shoul d
recess, and you can have sone nore tine to have
that opportunity to present, you know, this
seens to ne to be a very inportant aspect of
her managenent style. |If she's continuing to

allow, in despite of the detective telling her
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in May, May 9th, or when the search warrant

was -- was first conducted that these websites
exi sted, and what, if anything, has she done to
renove her upscal e busi ness fromthese very

sl eazy websi tes.

MR GLI CKFI ELD:  Yes.

CHAIR H PP: Wat have we done, what has
she done? Maybe you can offer sone nore
i nformati on.

MR, GLICKFIELD: Can |I take a brief recess
to neet, because that's a decision really for
the client to nake.

CHAIR H PP: Yes, absolutely.

MR, GLICKFIELD: Can | take a brief
recess --

CHAIR HI PP:  Yes, you may.

MR, GLICKFI ELD: -- to speak with ny
client about this?

CHAIR HI PP: Yes, sir, absolutely.

MR. GLI CKFI ELD: Thank you.

CHAIR HPP:. W'Ill take a -- we'll take
about five mnutes until 9:45. Please cone
back pronptly.

(Werein, a short recess was taken.)

CHAIR HHPP: W're going to admt your

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179

Page 155 of 214



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript of Proceedings

March 06, 2025

evi dence, and | do not need nore information
regarding -- we're going to get what weight is
necessary.

MR. GLI CKFI ELD:  Okay.

CHAIR HI PP:  You brought out very
I nportantly what weight should be given to it,
how credible is it. W knowit's there. W']l|
get it the weight that is necessary --

MR G.I CKFI ELD:  Okay.

THE W TNESS: For the issue. So,
don't -- | don't want to proceed and give
Ms. Cao all the attention she needs before
we -- we don't need to delay. I'mgoing to
admt that, and we're going to proceed.

MR, G.I CKFI ELD: Okay, so we're going to
proceed?

CHAIR H PP: Yes, sir, yes, sir.

MR, GLICKFI ELD: Tell her that they
deci ded to proceed.

CHAIR HI PP: \Where are those docunents?

MR GICKFIELD: On, | have themright
her e.

CHAIR HHPP: W'Ill take A through E, and
you can set themright here next to us. Ckay,

M. Kl oos, please continue -- oh.
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MR KLOOS: He's on Cross.
CHAIR H PP: You're on Cross, okay, sorry.
M. Qickfield

MR. GLI CKFI ELD: | have no further
guesti ons.

CHAIR H PP: | have a question, can the
Board - -

MR KLOOS: Can | do --
CHAIR HI PP: You go ahead.
MR. GRAVILLE: -- redirect real quick?
CHAI R HI PP:  Yes.
MR, KLOOS: One question, Madam
CHAIR HI PP: R ght.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR KLOOS:
Q As we determ ned, you advi sed her about

t hese websites back on May 9th, 2024, and they're

still up today?
A Correct.
Q | f she woul d have just changed the phone

nunber, since you brought themto her attention,
woul d that taken care of the problenf

A Yes, because the advertisenent woul dn't be
rel evant to her nmassage parl or.

Q Ckay. So, absent any bots or any ot her
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entities that want to harm her busi ness, she coul d

have sinply changed her phone nunber and that would
have taken -- it wouldn't have |led you to Sunny's
Spa anynore, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay, thanks. No further questions.

CHAIR HI PP: Investigator, when you
conducted this search on February 2nd --
February 2024, | think you said February --

THE WTNESS: February 9th, we started.

CHAIR H PP: February 9th, 2024.

THE W TNESS:. Yes.

CHAIR H PP: And you tal ked about evi dence
that you found in the prem ses that would be
relating to sex trafficking. M question is,
what are sone of the -- you tal ked about sone
of indicia of sex trafficking, you know,
younger peopl e, vulnerable foreigners, living
with people. M question is going toward cash
on the prem ses. Wen you conducted your
search warrant, what, if any, cash was found at
the prem ses at that tinme?

THE WTNESS: There was a decent anount of
cash, | have to refer to ny report.

CHAIR HI PP: Decent, would you clarify
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t hat ?

THE WTNESS: 1'd say -- | would say naybe
4,000 dollars, which, you know, for a business
operating to have noney |aying around, to ne,
nme personally, that's a | arge anount of cash.

CHAIR H PP: Wat denom nations were these
cash?

THE WTNESS: US, US currency.

CHAIR H PP. 20s, 50s?

THE WTNESS: 20s, typically 20s, 10s.

CHAIR H PP:  Ckay.

THE W TNESS:. Yes.

CHAIR HPP: Al right, thank you, sir.
Any questions based on ny --

DR WH TMAN:. | have a question. You had
mal e officers go in to test the waters.

THE W TNESS. Yes.

DR. WH TMAN:. Did you send female officers
I n?

THE WTNESS: W did not, no.

DR. WH TMAN:  Why?

THE WTNESS: Well, after doing
surveil l ance and wat ching this massage parl or,
we never saw any females go in.

DR, VWH TMAN: Okay, thank you.
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THE WTNESS: Not that we don't send
femal es into other nmassage parlors.

CHAIR HHPP: M. dickfield, do you have
any further evidence to prevent -- to present?

MR. GLI CKFI ELD:  No, | have no further
evi dence.

CHAIR H PP: M. Kloos, do you have any
further evidence to present?

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: Nothing further fromthe
Cty.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. |s there anyone
present in the gallery here that w shes to
present anything for or against the petitioner?
(kay. Very good. Does the Board have any
further questions? GCkay. At this tinme, the
chair wll entertain a notion relevant to
BA012024. Do we have a notion on the floor or
any further discussion?

(Court reporter clarification.)

MR. GRAVILLE: So, here what's | woul d
suggest, especially this late in the night,
make the notion in a positive or it wll be
confusing. So, either -- | would suggest you
make the notion, for exanple, nmake a notion to

ei t her uphold or reverse the decision of the
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Cty Admnistrator. |In that context, | think
that is perfectly fine in whatever you want
your notion to do.

CHAIR H PP: Then | would nake a notion --

MR, GRAVILLE: O sustain, | guess.

CHAIR HPP: | would nake a notion to
uphold the finding of the Cty -- M. Ceisel,
Cty -- Gty Admnistrator, which in his
notion, where he has a denial of the license or
the denial of the reinstatenent of the |icense?

MR, GRAVILLE: It's a denial of the
renewal of the |icense.

CHAIR HI PP: A denial of the renewal of
the license. That is ny notion.

MR. BLOCK: | would second that notion.

CHAIR H PP: Ckay. Ms. Bl esener, would
you pl ease call the vote?

M5. BLESENER: Kat herine Hi pp?

CHAIR HPP: | vote to approve the
notion -- the order rendered by the Cty
Adm ni strator denying -- it's denying her
i cense, sorry.

MR, GRAVILLE: It's a notion to affirm

CHAIR HPP: Affirm The Gty
Adm ni strator's.
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MR. GRAVILLE: The decision of the Cty
Adm ni strator --

CHAIR HI PP: The decision --

MR. GRAVILLE: -- to deny the renewal --

CHAIR HHPP: -- to deny renewal of the --

MR. GRAVILLE: Business |icense.

CHAIR HHPP: That's ny notion, that's been
seconded, and calling the role. | vote to
uphol d the decision of the Gty Adm nistrator.

M5. BLESENER: Ckay. Brendan Bl ock?

MR BLOCK: | vote to uphold the decision.

M5. BLESENER  Jeanni e Rader?

M5. RADER. | vote to uphold the decision.

M5. BLESENER: And Barb Wit man?

DR WH TMAN: | vote to uphold the
deci si on.

MR, GRAVILLE: So, M. Gickfield, I'm
going to ask the Board of Adjustnent to
aut horize the Chair to sign a findings of facts
and concl usions of |aw so we get that done and
get it to you, so you can discuss with your
client what you want to do with that.

MR G.I CKFI ELD:  Okay.

MR. GRAVILLE: Do you have any objection
to that?
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MR. GLICKFI ELD: | want to nmake sure
under st and what's happening. That we have 30
days if we wish to appeal this, but that's 30
days fromthe date of the order of this finding
of facts that you'll get ne when you get it to
ne.

MR GRAVILLE: Well, so what wll happen
Is, isl'"mgoing to the -- | amgoing to ask
themto authorize the Chair to find -- to sign
a findings of facts and concl usion of |aw
consistent with the evidence of the hearing
t oday.

MR. GLI CKFI ELD:  Ckay.

MR, GRAVILLE: So, | can get it to you
soon, makes sense?

MR G.ICKFI ELD: | understand. | just
want to understand when ny 30-day cl ock begins.
It begins fromthe date of that, right? So, if
you get it to ne tonorrow, it begins from
tonorrow, correct?

MR GRAVILLE: | think you need to
research that, but that's ny understanding. |
don't think I can advise you on that.

MR G.I CKFI ELD: Okay.

MR. GRAVILLE: Yeah. Because they sign an
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order now, but there's a little bit of
I nconsistency in the timng, so l'mgoing to
ask themto expedite that, so | can get it to
you, so you can have the cl eanest 30 days you
can have. Fair enough? Because they signed
these -- there's like a little -- if you | ook
at your packet there's like a little decision
that is at the very back that she'll sign
toni ght --

MR G.I CKFI ELD:  What packet? | didn't
receive a --

MR, GRAVILLE: Your application to appeal.

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: On, that, yes, sorry.

MR. GRAVILLE: Okay. $So, | would ask that
t he Board of Adjustnment nmake a notion to
aut horize the Chair to find -- sign a findings
of facts and concl usions of |aw consistent wth
the evidence in the decision today --

CHAIR HIPP: | would second that notion.
Can we call a vote on that?

MR. GRAVILLE: You'll nmake a notion.

MR BLOCK: 1'll nmke the notion, you
second - -

CHAIR HPP: [I'Il second. Does that nake

sense?
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MR GLI CKFI ELD:  Yes.

CHAIR HPP: W'Ill date and sign it with
t he nost cl eanest opportunity for you to --
yeah.

MR. GLI CKFI ELD: Thank you very much.

CHAI R HI PP: Thank you, you've done a fine
] ob.

MR, GLI CKFI ELD: | appreciate you sayi ng
t hat .

CHAIR H PP: You as well, sir. Very
nice. Anything further? W are adjourned.

(Ending tinme of the hearing: 9:56 p.m)
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|, Colin Wallis, in and for the State of
M ssouri do hereby certify that the w tness
whose testinony appears in the foregoing
Exam nati on Under Gath was duly sworn by ne;
that the testinony of the said wtness was
taken by ne to the best of ny ability and
thereafter reduced to typewiting under ny

direction; that | am neither counsel for,

related to, nor enployed by any of the parties

to the action in which this exam nati on was

taken, and further that | amnot rel ative or

enpl oyee of any attorney or counsel enployed by

the parties thereto, nor financially or

otherw se interested in the out cone of the

SANRY N

within and for the State of M ssouri
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CITY OF

CHESTERFIELD

PLANNING

690 Chesterfield Pkwy W e Chesterfield MO 63017-0760
Phone: 636-537-4000 e Fax 636-537-4798 e www.chesterfield.mo.us

Board of Adjustment Staff Report

Variance Type: Area Variance

Meeting Date: August 7%, 2025

From: Alyssa Ahner, Senior Planner

Location: 716 Judson Manor Court

Applicant: Robert Roggeman on behalf of Cooper Joint Irrevocable Gift Trust

Description: B.A. 03-2025 Judson Manor, Lot 27: A request for a variance of the structure

setbacks of the “R-3” Residential District for a .3-acre tract of land located south
of Beagle Lane and east of Judson Manor Drive.

PROPOSAL SUMMARY

Robert Roggeman, on behalf of the { TR T —

property owner of 716 Judson Manor
Court, is requesting a variance from the
structure setbacks of the “R-3” Residential
District in order to install a generator at a
single-family residence.

SITE HISTORY

The Judson Manor subdivision was platted
in 1962 with most homes being constructed
in 1965. There have been no changes to the
“R-3” zoning since its establishment. The
“R-3” zoning district requires a front yard
structure setback of thirty (30) feet, a side
yard setback of eight (8) feet, and a rear
yard setback of fifteen (15) feet. However, regardless of the zoning and some of these setbacks being
depicted on the plat, homes were constructed within these setbacks and the reason behind is unknown.

Figure 1: Subject Site
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Board of Adjustment B.A. 03-2025 Judson Manor, Lot 27
August 7th, 2025 Area Variance

There have been two Board of Adjustment petitions for the subdivision, one in 1993 and another in 1996,
to address similar setback issues. Both petitions were approved which resulted in a reduction from the
required eight (8) foot side yard setback.

REQUEST

As previously mentioned, the applicant intends to install a generator along their southern property line.
In order to use the proposed location, a reduction in the side yard setback would need to be reduced
from 8 to 1.417'. However, in order to remediate other non-conformities on site, the following
reductions would need to be made:

e Reduction in side yard setback along southern property line from 8’ to 1'.
e Reduction in side yard setback along northern property line from 8’ to 4.
e Reduction in front yard setback from 30’ to 26’.

The applicant has included a statement of hardship in the
application attached to this report. Additionally, the application
also includes a narrative on the unique physical characteristics
of the lot. Per the applicant, “It has an angled shape that causes
the right-side property line to converge unusually close to the
structure. Unlike standard rectangular lots, this lot narrows
sharply at one corner, limiting placement options for exterior
equipment. This unique geometry makes it difficult to install a
generator without infringing on setback requirements, even
though the unit remains tucked closely to the house.” Said
unique lot shape may be seen in Figure 2.

Figure 2: Subject Site

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

In consideration of a request for a variance, the Board of Adjustment is required to follow Missouri State
Statute and Chesterfield City Code requirements. Missouri Revised Statute Chapter 89.090 requires that
a Board of Adjustment may only grant variances when the Applicant has established:

“there are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardship in the way of carrying out the strict letter of
such ordinance” and “to vary or modify the application of any of the regulations or provisions of such
ordinance relating to the use of land so that the spirit of the ordinance shall be observed, public safety
and welfare secured and substantial justice done”.

It should be noted, the practical difficulty relied on as a ground for a variance must be different from
that suffered throughout the zone or the neighborhood. Hardships pertain to the nature of the property
rather than the character of the owner. Thus, when granting a variance, the Board must consider the
present and future effect of such variances on the property and neighboring property. Variances run
with the land; they are not personal to the owner.

-2-|Page
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Board of Adjustment B.A. 03-2025 Judson Manor, Lot 27
August 7th, 2025 Area Variance

REVIEW OF VARIANCE REQUEST

The Department of Planning has reviewed the request and submits the following information for the
Board’s consideration during review.

Chapter 89 of the Missouri Revised Statutes states, “In passing upon appeals, where there are practical
difficulties or unnecessary hardship in the way of carrying out the strict letter of such ordinance, to
vary or modify the application of any of the regulations or provisions of such ordinance relating to the
construction or alteration of buildings or structures or the use of land so that the spirit of the ordinance
shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured and substantial justice done...” (emphasis added).

In reviewing the statement of practical difficulty, several factors are to be considered by the Board:

1. How substantial the variation is in relationship to the requirement.

2. The effect, if the variance is allowed, on available governmental facilities.

3. Whether a substantial change will be produced in the character of the neighborhood or
substantial detriment to adjoining properties or neighbors.

4. Whether the difficulty can be obviated by some feasible method other than the variance.

5. Whether the interest of justice will be served by allowing the variance.

A decision of the Board granting a variance that permits the erection of a structure shall be valid for a
period of six (6) months, unless a building permit for such erection is obtained within this period and the
erection is started and proceeds to completion in accordance with the terms of the decision.

Exhibits

Staff Report

Notice of Public Hearing
Affidavit of Publication
Petitioner’s Application
Letters of Support

vk wnN e
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Adjustment of the City of Chesterfield will hold a Public
Hearing on August 7", 2025 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at Chesterfield City Hall, 690
Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017.

Said Hearing will be as follows:

B.A. 03-2025 Judson Manor, Lot 27: A request for a variance of the structure setbacks of the “R-3”

Residential District for a .3-acre tract of land located south of Beagle Lane and east of Judson Manor Drive.

Anyone interested in the proceedings will be given an opportunity to be heard. Copies of the request are
available in the Department of Planning at Chesterfield City Hall, 690 Chesterfield Parkway West on
weekdays between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. If you need additional information about this
project, please contact Alyssa Ahner, Senior Planner, by telephone at 636-537-4738 or by email at
aahner@chesterfield.mo.us

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
Alyssa Ahner
Senior Planner

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
A tract of land being Lot 27 of Judson Manor Plat One subdivision as recorded in plat book 105 page 71 in

St. Louis County, Missouri.
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The Countian - St. Louis County
1400 S. Highway Drive

Fenton, MO, 63099

Phone: 3144211880 Fax: 0

Affidavit of Publication

THE

To: City of Chesterfield - Alyssa Ahner
690 Chesterfield Parkway West
Chesterfield, MO, 63017
Re: Legal Notice 4076402, City of Chesterfield
State of MO }
} SS:
County of St. Louis County }

Before the undersigned Notary Public personally appeared Johnny
Aguirre on behalf of The Countian - St. Louis County, St. Louis County
who, being duly sworn, attests that the said newspaper is qualified
under the provisions of Missouri Law governing public notices to
publish, and did so publish, the notice annexed hereto; starting with the
07/23/2025 edition and ending with the 07/23/2025 edition for a total
of 1 publications, and that the date of publications were as follows:
07/23/2025.

Publishers fee: $49.98 By:

Jorfhny Aguirre

Sworn to me on this 24™ day of
July 2025 /
By: W

Brandon M. Crail J

Notary Public, State of MO
No. 20297982
Qualified in St. Louis County
My commission expires on
March 5, 2028

P!

COUNTIAN J 1 .

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
BOARD OF ADIUSTMENT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the
Board of Adjustment of the City of
Chesterfield will hold a Public Hearing
on August 7th, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. in the
Council Chambers at Chesterfield City
Hall, 690 Chesterfield Parkway West,
Chesterfield, Missouri 63017,

Said Hearing will be as follows:

B.A. 03-2025 Judson Manor,

Lot 27; A request for a variance of

the structure sethacks of the "R-3"
Residential District for a .3-acre tract of
land located south of Beagle Lane and
east of Judson Manor Drive,

Anyone interested in the proceedings
will be given an opportunity to be
heard. Copies of the request are
available in the Department of
Planning at Chesterfield City Hall, 690
Chesterfield Parkway West on weekdays
between the hours of §:30 a.m. and
430 p.rn. If you need additional
informatien about this project, please
contact Alyssa Ahner, Senior Planner, by
telephone at 636-537-4738 or by email
at ashner@chesterfield mo.us

(ITY OF CHESTERFIELD

Alyssa Ahner

Senigr Planner

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

A tract of land being Lot 27 of Judsan
Manor Plat One subdivision as recorded
in plat hook 105 page 71 in 5t. Louls
County, Missouri.

4076402 County Juf, 23, 2025

NDON M CRAIL
NotaaarcPublic, Notary_Seal
State of Missouri

o LOUisf ggg&saz
mission
My Co%)rrr?is;ion Expires 03-05-2028

LOUIS
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= City of
—=Chesterfield

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION

The Board of Adjustment is a local body consisting of volunteers appointed by the Mayor. The Board
hears requests for variances and appeals of administrative determinations, A variance is a deviation
Jrom the zoning ordinance requirements Jor a specific parcel. The types of variances heard before the
Board of Adjustment are Use, Area, and Bulk Variances. A variance is granted only upon
demonstration of a hardship such as lot size, topography, or other issues not created by the lot owner.
For questions about this application, please contact the Department of Planning at 636-537-4746. For
information about this and other projects under review by the Department, please visit “Active
Developments” at chesterfield.mo.us/active-developments. html

Check (¥) the type of variance for which you are applying:

Area or Bulk variance: A request to allow I:l Use variance: A request to allow

deviation from the dimensional (i.e. deviation for the permissible uses of a
height, bulk yard) requirements of a zoning district.
zoning district,

D Sign variance: A request to allow Appeal of Administrative Determination
deviation from  dimensional/quantity
regulations

Please note: Areas in gray will be completed by the Department of Planning.

STATE OF MISSOURI BOA NUMBER
HEARING DATE

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
Petition for Appeal from Zoning Regulations

L I._APPLICANT INFORMATION |

Owner(s) of record of the hereinafter described property according to St. Louis County Assessor
Record: COOPER JOINT IRREVOCABLE GIFT TRUST THE

Address; 716 Judson Manor Drive
City: Chesterfield State: MO Zip: 63141
Tel.: (314) 406-3089 Fax:

Petitioner, if other than owner(s): Robert Roggeman
Address: 17406 Chesterfleld Alrport Rd

City; Chesterfleld State: MO Zip: 63005
Tel.: (314) 949-68409 Fax;

Legal Interest:

(Provide date of contract and date of expiration of contract)

*Attach additional sheets as necessary for other Parties of Interest (Architect, Engineer, etc.)

690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterficld.mo.us
Rev 01/2023 Page 1 of 10
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| II. PROPERTY INFORMATION N

Pr()ject Address: 716 Judson Manor Dr
Locator Number(s): 17Q610157
(List additional locator numbers on separate sheet and attach to petition)

Acreage: -3 (To the nearest tenth of an acre)
Subdivision Name (If applicable): JUDSON MANOR PLAT 1
Current Zoning District: R3 Zoning District

Legal Description of Property:
Lot 27 of Judson Manor Plat 1

IiAttach additional sheets as necessary)

1 III. NATURE OF REQUEST FOR VARIANCE |

Unique physical characteristics of the lot (e.g., size, slope, ete.):

It has an angled shape that causes the right-side property line to converge unusually close to the
structure. Unlike standard rectangular lots, this lot narrows sharply at one corner, limiting placement
options for exterior equipment. This unique geometry makes it difficult to install a generator without
infringing on setback reguirements, even though the unit remains tucked closely to the house.

(Attach additional sheets as necessary)

Description of the necessity of the proposed improvement:
18kW Home Standby Generac Generator to provide backup power in case of a power outage.

Ordinance Number and section to which a variance is sought:
Unified Development Code - Section 405.03.030(1)(3)(d)

(Attach additional sheets as necessary)

Do deed restrictions or subdivision trust indentures for the property prohibit the use or
construction which is requested by this petition? Check (v") one Yes v’ |No

690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us
Rev 01/2023 Page 2 0of 10
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Statement of unnecessary hardship, practical difficulty or other information warranting

_action by the Board:

occupants.

vulnerable occupants in the home.

| therefore respectfully request the Board's favorable consideration of this variance.

Sincerely, =
Robert Roggeman

We are respectfully requesting a variance to allow the installation of a home standby generator that will encroach upon the required
side yard setback on the homeowners property. The proposed location for the generator is based on a combination of technical,
environmental, and safety constraints that create a practical difficulty in adhering strictly to the zoning setback reguirements.

Due to the layout of the existing home, including the location of utilities (natural gas and electrical service panels), HVAC units, and
windows and doors, the side yard area, next to the natural gas meter, presents the most feasible and code-compliant location for

generator placement in accordance with manufacturer and safety guidelines. Other potential locations either lack proper clearance,
would cbstruct required access or egress, or would result in excessive noise or vibration for habitable interior spaces.

Strict enforcement of the setback requirement would cause unnecessary hardship by significantly increasing installation costs,
requiring major relocation of existing infrastructure, and potentially violating manufacturer safety specifications. The requested
variance is the minimum necessary to allow for a reasonable use of the property while ensuring the safety and well-being of its

This generator is intended to provide essential power during cutages, which are increasing in frequency due to severe weather. It
supports vital systems such as minor medical equipment, refrigeration, heating, and communications, particularly important for

| believe that the requested variance will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood, nor will it substantially or permanently
impair the appropriate use or development of adjacent property. The generator will be installed to meet all applicable noise and safety
codes, and will include appropriate screening and mitigation measures to minimize any potential impact on neighboring properties.

(Attach additional sheets as necessary)

690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chestertield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us
Rev 01/2023

Page 3 of 10
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Description of the effect or impact on neighboring properties:

The generator will be placed at the front right corner of 716 Judson Manor Dr, near the property line. The
adjacent property is an apartment complex located across a creek and wooded area, creating a natural
buffer that minimizes both noise and visibility.

The generator will operate only during outages or brief maintenance tests, and it will meet all noise and
safety regulations. Due to the distance, terrain, and existing vegetation, there will be no significant impact
on neighboring properties.

(Altach additional sheets as necessary)

For Area or Bulk Variance Requests, complete the following section:
A. Setbacks/Height:

The Petitioner(s) request City of Chesterfield

the following setback(s): Regulations require the
following setback(s) for this
site;
Front Yard: N/A 20
1.417" g
Side Yard: 4
N/A 15'
Rear Yard:
Height:

Provide the following:

1. A $90.00 fee. (Checks/money orders to be made payable to the City of Chesterfield)

2. Two completed copies of this application with original signatures. Please note: A copy with the
Chairman’s signature and the Board’s decision will be refurned fo you.

3. Seventeen (17) copies of the following for inclusion in the packet:

o A site plan showing the dimensions and location (including distance from property lines) of
all existing and proposed buildings and structures.

0 Letters from abutting property owners stating their position.
o Copies of the completed application.
0 The City of Chesterfield rejection or denial.
O Any other information as required by the City of Chesterfield
690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760

Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us
Rev 01/2023 Page 4 of 10
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For Sign Variance Requests, complete the followin g section:
B. Signage:
The Petitioner(s) request City of Chesterfield
the following : Regulations allow the
following for this site:

Number of attached business
signs:

Size of attached business
signs:

Number of freestanding
business signs:

Size of freestanding business
signs:

Explain why the sign variance request would not cause a public health or safety concern to
the neighborhood or the public welfare.

Provide the following:

1. A $90.00 fee. (Checks/money orders to be made payable to the City of Chesterfield.)

2. Two completed copies of this application with original signatures. Please note: A copy with the
Chairman’s signature and the Board’s decision will be returned to you.

3. Seventeen (17) copies of the following for inclusion in the packet:
O A site plan showing:

» The subject property with adjoining streets, existing buildings, major parking lot, and distance
to property lines.

+ The location of proposed signs.

» If attached wall signs, the cross section of wall on which sign is to be placed with dimensions
and total square feet (or portion of total wall that will contain petitioner’s business).

O A detail sign plan indicating:
* Dimension of signs with detail sign lettering layout.
» Total square feet of signs. If attached, what percent of wall.
* Light detail, if any.

Letters from abutting property owners stating their position.
Copies of the completed application.

The City of Chesterfield rejection or denial.

O O oo

Any other information as required by the City of Chesterfield

690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)337-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us
Rev 01/2023 Page 50f 10
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! IV. COMPLIANCE B

Is property in compliance with all previous conditions of approval of all applicable Ordinance
requirements?

Yes No. If no, please explain:

Is property in compliance with all Zoning, Subdivision, and Code requirements?

Yes No. If no, please explain;

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

690 Chesterficld Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us
Rev 01/2023 Page 6 of 10
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[ V. STATEMENT OF CONSENT |

STATEMENT OF CONSENT

I hereby give CONSENT to Robert Roggeman (type, stamp or print
clearly fuil name of agent) to act on my behalf to submit this application and all required material and
documents, and to attend and represent me at all meetings and public hearings pertaining to the
application(s) indicated above. Furthermore, I hereby give consent to the party designated above to agree
to all terms and conditions which may arisc as part of the approval of this application.

I hereby certify 1 have full knowledge of the property and I have an ownership interest and/or am the
owner under contract in the subject of this application. I further certify the statements or information
made in any paper or plans submitted herewith are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 1
understand that any false, inaccurate or incomplete information provided by me or my agent will result in
the denial, revocation or administrative withdrawal of this application, request, approval or permits. [
acknowledge that additional information may be required to process this application. I further consent to
the City of Chesterfield to publish, copy or reproduce any copyrighted document submitted as a part of
this application for any third party. T understand this application, related material and all attachments
become official records of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri, and will not be returned. I further agree to
all terms and conditions which may be imposed as part of the approval of this application.

OWNER/CONTRACT PURCHASER INFORMATION:
Tam the IZ, owner I:I contract purchaser. (check (v") one)

. ~ s
Kenuy £ qu/%c CGC’,&W Myau«%tgéaf” gy"?/—\

(Name- type, stamp or print clearly) (Signature)

206 Jwfsan Moy Dr Cugjfrawf’;f[d AR

(Name of Firm) (Address, City, State, Zip)
Note: Attach additional sheets as necessary.

NOTARY PUBLIC INFORMATION: STATE OF MISSOURI, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD

ed

The foregoing instrument was subscribed and sworn to before me this day of }! IY\€

20 QS .

Signed @‘L’%(//%Q\Nﬁm Namei_b@l&ﬂ?tj Pose Vlpese

Notary Public J
Seal/Stamp:

My Commission Expires: 0‘1[}/ / 2// ?\02‘4“

DELANEY ROSE MOESER
Natary Public - Nofary Seal
Jefferson County - State of Missouri |
Commission Number 23417385 i
& My Commission Expires Apr 12, 2027 #

690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us
Rev 01/2023 Page 7 of 10
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VI. AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY |

INSTRUCTIONS: To be completed by individual submitting application (property owner, petitioner
with consent, or authorized agent).

Project Name: Generator Install - Cooper Submittal Date:

STATEMENT OF COMPLETION AND ACCURACY

[ hereby certify the statements or information made in any paper or plans submitted herewith are true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and that all property owners have full knowledge that the property
they own is the subject of this application. I understand that any knowingly false, inaccurate or
incomplete information provided by me will result in the denial, revocation or administrative withdrawal
of this application, request, approval or permit and further certify that all owners and petitioners have
been provided a complete copy of all material, attachments and documents submitted to the City of
Chesterfield relating to this application. 1 acknowledge this application, related application material and
all attachments become official records of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri and will not be returned. 1
further acknowledge that additional information may be required by the City of Chesterfield to process
this application. No arrangement has been made to pay any commission, gratuity, or consideration,
directly or indirectly, to any official, employee, or appointee of the City of Chesterfield with respect to
this application.

Check (¥') one: l—_—l I am the property owner. I:I [ am the contract purchaser.
I am the duly appointed agent of the petitioner.

M@\

Robert Roggeman

(Name- type, stamp or print clearly) (Signature)
129G Sestulbidy A (5, Soeork oy
(Name of Firm) (Address, City, State, Zip)240) (53OS B

Note: Attach additional sheets as necessary.

NOTARY PUBLIC INFORMATION: STATE OF MISSOURI, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD

to before me this g Th day of _Suﬂc

The foregoing instrument was subscribed/4r

4, Tra
Print Name: lfqun Jreuw S G

Seal/Stamp:

s IE SR =

My Commission Expires: d -/0- 16! G Notary Public - Notary Seal
State of Missouri
Commissioned for St. Charles County
My Commission Expires: June 10, 2026
14431629

690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us

Rev 01/2023 Page 8 of 10
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VIL. CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
LIENS AND FINES CERTIFICATION

Project Name: Ward:

Address: Locator:

STATE OF MISSOURI, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
I do hereby certify to the Council of the City of Chesterfield that:

___ There are no fines and/or liens of record on the property by or owed to the City of Chesterfield.

___ There are the following fines and/or liens owed to the City of Chesterfield:

Finance Director Date
City of Chesterfield

[THIS PAGE FOR INTERNAL USE]

690 Chesterficld Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us
Rev 01/2023 Page 9 of 10
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T S

Lt

Intake Date:

STAFF / BOA USE ONLY

This petition is granted / denied (circle one) on the day of 20
i Signed: !
1 Chairman ‘
[THIS PAGE FOR INTERNAL USE]
690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, MO 63017-0760
Ph. (636)537-4746 Fax (636)537-4798 www.chesterfield.mo.us
Rev 01/2023 Page 10 of 10
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SITE PLAN

716 Judson Manor Dr
St. Louis, MO 63141
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_[\roofline
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/N »
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|

Property line
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Letters of Support



Subject: Re: postcard & sign

Sent: 7/28/2025, 9:05:05 AM

From: Jeanne Holder<wga_tap@swbell.net>
To: Alyssa Ahner

Hi Alyssa,
Thanks for taking time to explain this permit situation and how the Board of Adjustment works.
Please pass along my support for the Cooper family request to the board since | am unable to attend the meeting.

Best Regards,
Jeanne Holder

Sent from my iPhone

On Jul 28, 2025, at 8:18 AM, Alyssa Ahner <AAhner@chesterfield.mo.us> wrote:

Good morning Jeanne,

Your neighbor is looking to install a generator along their southern property line. However, generators are only allowed
to extend 36 inches into the structure setbacks and their proposal does not meet this. The lot has a unique shape which
makes it even trickier to meet setbacks in addition to the building code requirements so the only way for this to be
possible is through a variance. The image below shows what is proposed.

St. Louis, MO 63141 SC : E‘?

Parcel ID: 17Q-6-1-015-7

Property line —_ F .,=20,
Lot area: 0.26 Acres lr‘ o oy - SO —— scale 1"=20'
Paper Size: 11"x17" { all ine =g
1 |
Mo.716 ’
i EXISTING
HOUSE o roofline ,
|
|
I§
[
[
' ]
\ J |
18" From House to Generator . | N -
25" 'Width of Generator |
lTJ Property line '\j Property line

5' From House to S Property Line
1.417' From Generator to S Property Line

Alyssa Ahner

Senior Planner

City of Chesterfield

690 Chesterfield Parkway West
Chesterfield, MO 63017

Phone: 636.537.4738

Email: aahner@chesterfield.mo.us
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Subject: Variance request for lot 27 of Judson Manor Plat One recorded in plat book 105 page 71 in St Louis County.
Sent: 7/29/2025, 9:57:16 AM

From: James French<jdfrench5443@gmail.com>

To: Alyssa Ahner

Hi Alyssa,

| am unable to attend the Public Hearing on August 7, 2025. | wish to express my support for the requested variance by the Cooper
Family.

Sincerely,

James D French

715 Walfield Ln, St. Louis, MO 63141

734-652-0035
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